
                                  

AGENDA
For a meeting of the

GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE
to be held on

THURSDAY, 14 DECEMBER 2017
at

2.00 PM
in the

WITHAM ROOM - COUNCIL OFFICES, ST. PETER'S HILL, 
GRANTHAM. NG31 6PZ

Aidan Rave, Chief Executive    

Chairman
Councillor Ian Stokes

Councillor Phil Dilks
Councillor Damian Evans
Councillor David Mapp (Vice-Chairman)

Councillor Peter Stephens
Councillor Brian Sumner
Councillor Paul Wood

Committee Support
Officer:

Anita Eckersley Tel: 01476 406517
E-mail: a.eckersley@southkesteven.gov.uk

Members of the Committee are invited to attend the above meeting to consider 
the items of business listed below.

1  MEMBERSHIP 

The Committee to be notified of any substitute members.

2  APOLOGIES 

3  DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS 

Members are asked to disclose any interests in matters for consideration at the 
meeting.

4  MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 20 SEPTEMBER 2017 (Pages 3 - 13)

(Enclosure)

5  UPDATES FROM PREVIOUS MEETING 



6  ANNUAL AUDIT LETTER (Pages 14 - 19)

(Enclosure)

7  INTERNAL AUDIT PROGRESS REPORT (Pages 20 - 63)

Report of Internal Audit.  (Enclosure)

8  INTERNAL AUDIT FOLLOW UP REPORT (Pages 64 - 72)

Report of Internal Audit. (Enclosure)

9  CORPORATE RISK REGISTER UPDATE (Pages 73 - 80)

Report number CFM445 of the Cabinet Member for Finance. (Enclosure)

10  COUNTER FRAUD ANNUAL REPORT 2016/17 (Pages 81 - 85)

Report number CFM431 of the Cabinet Member for Finance. (Enclosure)

11  TREASURY MID-YEAR REVIEW (Pages 86 - 95)

Report CFM448 Report of the Cabinet Member for Finance. (Enclosure)

12  ANY OTHER BUSINESS, WHICH THE CHAIRMAN, BY REASONS OF SPECIAL 
CIRCUMSTANCES, DECIDES IS URGENT. 



MINUTES
GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT 
COMMITTEE
WEDNESDAY, 20 SEPTEMBER 
2017

COMMITTEE MEMBERS PRESENT

Councillor Phil Dilks
Councillor Damian Evans
Councillor David Mapp (Vice-Chairman)

Councillor Ian Stokes (Chairman)
Councillor Brian Sumner
Councillor Paul Wood

OFFICERS OTHER MEMBERS

Strategic Director (Daren Turner)
Corporate Finance Manager (Richard 
Wyles)
Senior Accountant (Gill Goddard)
Governance and Risk Officer (Tracey 
Elliott)
Service Manager – Housing 
Development and Improvements 
(Andrew Sweeney)
Civic and Democratic Officer (Anita 
Eckersley)

Councillor Adam Stokes, Cabinet 
Member for Finance
Councillor Dr Peter Moseley, Cabinet 
Member for Environment
Councillor Jacky Smith, Cabinet Member 
for Health, Well-being and Skills

AUDIT
Head of Internal Audit – RSM, Chris 
Williams
External Audit – KPMG, John Cornett, 
Director
External Audit – KPMG, Mike Norman, 
Manager

11. APOLOGIES

An apology for absence was received from Councillor Peter Stephens.

12. DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS

No interests were disclosed.

13. MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 29 JUNE 2017

The minutes of the meeting held on 29 June 2017 were proposed, seconded 

Pg 3

Agenda Item 4



2

and agreed as a correct record subject to the following amendment that the 
Head of Internal Audit (Chris Williams) should be noted as being from RSM and 
not KPMG as written in the minutes.

14. UPDATES FROM PREVIOUS MEETING

Update on the HRA Capital Programme Outturn underspends

The Service Manager for Housing Development and Improvement referred to 
members’ request from the previous meeting for information on continued 
underspends against the HRA Capital Programme. The report RIM0372 
contained details on slippage and outlined the actions being taken to avoid 
further underspends due to slippage on the HRA Capital Programme.   

The Committee was informed that when compiling the data the Council’s 
property database produced a programme based on forecasted component 
lifecycles and cyclical replacement assumptions. These programmes would 
then be pre-inspected to validate the data outputs.

Where pre-inspection components were found to be in a good state of repair 
the component would not be replaced and the lifecycle extended. By doing this 
a reduction in the annual cost of the programme and budget requirement was 
possible.

Examples of components scheduled for replacement included uPVC doors and 
windows. These were identified for replacement but often found to be sound 
when pre-inspected on site. The budget for doors for 2016-17 was underspent 
as a result of this.

Tenants were given advance notification of planned works together with an 
outline of the benefits of having the work done. This was to try and ensure the 
work was done so that the value of the asset could be maintained. 
Unfortunately, some tenants refused to have the work done or failed to allow 
access or make contact to arrange this. Tenant refusals occurred throughout 
the financial year but in some cases immediately prior to the work being 
undertaken. This limited options to bring in replacement properties.

The external wall insulation (EWI) project carried out during 2016-17 had 
required a funding bid under the Eco funding programme but the decision on 
the funding award was delayed which had impacted on the budget spend for 
2016–17.  This meant the start date was later than anticipated in the year and 
despite efforts to mitigate the situation a limited number of properties had been 
completed before the end of March 2017 resulting in an underspend.

In respect of the budget allocation for Growth and Acquisitions, two former 
Right To Buy properties were purchased. Other properties were considered but 
not progressed due to their price or condition. No suitable housing sites were 
found on the market which had contributed to the significant underspend. The 
spend on the programme was dependent on opportunities coming forward 

Pg 4



3

during the year. 

The Committee was informed that in addition to the monthly and quarterly 
budget review meetings undertaken by the property team a number of 
additional actions had been implemented to address capital underspends.

With regards to property data and pre-inspections, progress was being made 
on the housing stock condition survey which would increase stock data 
accuracy. Pre-inspections were still required and were being brought forward 
with the aim of reaching a position where programmes could be planned with 
more certainty in advance of budget setting.

Cost Assumptions: The capacity of the database was being explored to use 
more specific rates that would be tailored to the property type. This would 
ensure the cost of work programmes and budget setting was more accurately 
determined.

Procurement data on the Council’s contracts had recently been migrated to a 
new contract management database system. This allowed greater visibility of 
contract renewal dates.

Closer monitoring of the project management of Council contracts to ensure 
that the control of expenditure, progress and quality were effective. Work to 
contractors was being issued in a timely manner to commit funding in alignment 
with budget forecasts and resources. Concerns with contractors progress and 
expenditure was being raised at the monthly progress meetings and 
reassurances sought on resources committed to contracts.

Discussion took place on whether there was an impact on Council Tax where 
underspends would went. Councillors were advised there was no impact on 
Council Tax and that the money was rolled over to the next financial year.

Councillor Damian Evans arrived at 1.30pm.

Further discussion ensued on the lifespan of uPVC windows and doors and 
members were informed that they normally had around a 30 year lifespan.  

Members sought clarification on the percentage of tenant refusals there were 
and whether tenants were provided alternative accommodation if there was a 
change of bathroom or kitchen. It was noted that tenant refusal was roughly 
10% and mainly related to internal works. Tenants were not provided with 
alternative accommodation as a rule if a bathroom or kitchen was being fitted. It 
normally took between two to three weeks to undertake the works.

The Committee welcomed the measures being undertaken to reduce the 
underspends.  

The Committee noted the contents of the report in respect of the events 
impacting on the annual expenditure on the HRA Capital programme along with 
the measures being put in place to manage the causes of the slippage more 

Pg 5



4

effectively.

Action point:

It was proposed, seconded and agreed that the Committee receives a 
further update on the HRA Capital Programme and any underspends at 
the December 2017 meeting.

St Leonard’s Priory, Stamford

With reference to the action point from the previous minutes regarding St 
Leonard’s Priory, Stamford in respect of whether it was on a list to be inspected 
for necessary repairs, the Chairman read a statement that had been provided 
to update the Committee.

“We work closely with the Stamford Civic Society with regards to the upkeep 
and maintenance repair issues as and when required at St Leonard’s Priory. 

We have in the past carried out various repairs, such as replacing the gates on 
entry to the priory, re-pointed the stonework, replaced and repaired the 
rainwater goods etc.

Occasionally and to various local groups to Stamford, we allow the priory 
grounds to be used for events, this is much appreciated and enjoyed by the 
user groups, really it is a hidden gem, and one that requires being cared for.”

The Committee noted both updates.

15. INTERNAL AUDIT PROGRESS REPORT

The Internal Audit Progress Report had been circulated with the agenda and 
was presented by Chris Williams from RSM. He provided a detailed summary 
of the work undertaken between 1 April 2017 and 20 September 2017. 

Section 1 referred to the internal audit plan 2017/18 which had been approved 
by the Governance and Audit Committee in March 2017. It included a total of 
20 planned reviews. The report today summarised progress against that plan 
and the results of the work undertaken to date. It was noted that 25% of the 
assignments had either been completed or were in progress. 

Three reports had been issued and were attached to the progress report. 
These were the Asset Management Plan (HRA) with a finding of “Substantial 
Assurance” (2 medium and 1 low risk recommendations raised), Business 
Continuity with a finding of “Reasonable Assurance” (4 medium and 1 low risk 
recommendations raised) and the Follow up report with a finding of 
“Reasonable Progress” (2 medium risk recommendations raised). Details about 
the recommendations were included in the RSM report. The Asset 

Pg 6



5

Management Plan (HRA) audit was given a green opinion and the Business 
Continuity Audit was given an amber opinion.

With regards to the Asset Management Plan, a recommendation had been 
provided in respect of updating the property data base. New hand held devices 
were being provided for operatives to use out on site which enabled faster 
synchronisation with the data base.  

The Business Continuity medium findings were: the retention of evidence in 
relation to the communication of Business Continuity Plans to staff; a number of 
departmental Business Impact Analysis and Business Continuity Plans that had 
not been subject to review and subsequent approval by the relevant Executive 
Manager; Business Impact Analysis and the impact of score totalling when it 
came to risks and that the Business Continuity Plans had only been tested as a 
desk top exercise and not in a simulated environment.  

The Committee noted the contents of the report.

16. INTERNAL AUDIT FOLLOW UP REPORT

The Internal Audit Follow Up Report had been circulated with the agenda and 
was presented by Chris Williams from RSM. He explained that as part of the 
approved internal audit periodic plan for 2017/18 a review to follow up progress 
made by the Council had been undertaken.  

Reference was made to the five follow ups that had been undertaken, Tenancy 
Management, Absence Management, Income and Bank, Income and Debtors 
and Purchase Orders and Creditors. The management actions that had been 
reviewed were all “medium” priority actions. The focus of the review had been 
to provide assurance that all actions previously made and agreed had been 
adequately implemented.

The Committee queried whether it was usual to have outstanding actions and 
were assured there was no cause for concern. There would be a number of 
reasons why dates and deadlines for actions being implemented could not be 
met and these would always be factored in.

The Committee noted the contents of the report.

17. REQUEST FOR ADDITONAL AUDIT WORK

The Chairman invited the Cabinet Member for Environment to provide the 
Committee with an overview of the additional work he was requesting to be 
undertaken.

The Cabinet Member for Environment referred to national and local underlying 
issues regarding missed bin collections. He recognised there were a variety of 
reasons why bin collections were missed, such as a contaminated bin or the 

Pg 7



6

incorrect bin being presented for collection. He was requesting that a review of 
the system be undertaken and suggested that the main areas would need to be 
effectiveness, value for money and wider issues. Above all he wanted a better 
understanding and reassurance that the current processes were correct and 
met both the customer need as well as the needs of the Council.

The Committee was informed that there was potential for a review to be 
undertaken within the current Audit Programme.

Action Point:

It was proposed, seconded and accepted in principle that a review be 
undertaken into missed bin collections and that the Cabinet Member 
for Environment discuss the potential scope of the review with the 
Internal Audit provider.

18. ANNUAL GOVERNANCE REPORT 2016/17

Mr Cornett, KPMG presented the Annual Governance Report 2016/17. He 
stated that KPMG anticipated giving an unqualified opinion on the Council’s 
2016/17 financial statements by 30 September 2017. It would be reported that 
the Annual Governance Statement complied with the guidance issued by 
CIPFA/SOLACE (Delivering Good Governance in Local Government) published 
in April 2016. Reference was also made to some minor presentational changes 
within the report.  

External Audit was required to provide a separate value for money conclusion. 
No significant risks had been identified. Mr Cornett explained that the 2016/17 
Value for Money conclusion considered whether the Authority had proper 
arrangements in place to ensure properly informed decisions were taken and 
the appropriate resources deployed to achieve planned and sustainable 
outcomes for tax payers and local people.  

The conclusion was the Authority had proper arrangements in place to ensure 
properly informed decisions and appropriate resources were deployed to 
achieve planned and sustainable outcomes for tax payers and local people. It 
was also noted that no material mistakes had been identified and no 
uncorrected or non-material differences needed to be brought to members’ 
attention. 

External Audit reported that a balanced approach had been identified in all 
aspects where an audit had been undertaken and there were no concerns 
regarding accounting policies, accounting estimates and financial statement 
disclosures. The requested working papers had been supplied at the start of 
the audit progress and the officers’ response to further requests for working 
papers and information was efficient. 

Mr. Norman (KPMG) confirmed that all the requirements relating to objectivity 
and independence had been complied with. In addition he commended officers 

Pg 8



7

for their help and assistance noting that it was a good outcome for the 
authority.  

Members were pleased with the contents of the report and felt it reflected the 
diligence and hard work of members and officers. The Committee noted the 
contents of the report and expressed their gratitude to the Council’s finance 
officers who had compiled the accounts. Members’ thanks was also extended 
to External Audit for its work. 

19. STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2016/17

The Senior Financial Accountant introduced report number CFM384 which 
presented the Council’s Statement of Accounts 2016/17. It covered 
requirements of the Account and Audit (England) Regulations 2015, Section 
21(2) of the Local Government Act 2003, the revised Statement of Accounts 
and commentary on the outcome of the audit of the Statement of Accounts. 
Members were reminded that the draft Accounts were presented to the 
Committee at its meeting on 29 June 2017.

Reference was made to the Draft Statement of Accounts that were originally 
presented to this committee at its meeting on 29 June 2017. The external audit 
had now been completed and the Statement of Accounts revised to reflect the 
outcome of this work along with members comments made at that meeting in 
June. The updated set of accounts was now being presented to Committee 
together with a commentary setting out the main findings from the audit and 
subsequent amendments for members’ consideration and approval. A summary 
of accounts was also being presented for Committee approval.

The required changes following the external audit were minor presentational, 
typographical and narrative changes and noted under 1.6 of the report. The 
changes provided a better understanding of the figures in the accounts.

During their discussions on the Statement of Accounts, members asked for an 
explanation and reasons why there was movement in reserves; the movement 
was a combination of several issues one of which was the new home bonus 
money not being fully used as anticipated. The combined reserves of the HRA 
did not include the General Fund. The HRA reserves were used for major 
repairs and projects driven by the policies of the Council. It was also used for 
known commitments such as pensions and elements tagged to policies or legal 
issues. There was no mandatory figure set for the amount of reserves a Council 
could hold although the Auditors would express a view if appropriate.

The recommendations listed in report number CFM432 were proposed, 
seconded and agreed.

Decision:

The Governance and Audit Committee 

Pg 9



8

1. Approves the revised Statement of Accounts 2016/17 as per 
appendix 1 of report number CFM432 

2. Notes the commentary on the outcome of audit work

3. Approves the publication of the summary of accounts on the 
Council’s website

4. Approves the signing of the Letter of Representation

It was also proposed and seconded that the Letter of Representation be 
signed. On being put to the vote, the Committee approved the signing of the 
document.

14:25-14:30 – The meeting adjourned.

20. TREASURY MANAGEMENT ANNUAL REPORT

The Senior Financial Accountant presented Report number CFM434 that 
primarily concentrated on the Council’s borrowing and investment portfolios as 
at 31 March 2017.

The Governance and Audit Committee had delegated powers from Council to 
deal with matters relating to the Council’s Treasury Management activities. 
Specifically it had the responsibility to monitor, review and amend as 
appropriate the Council approved Treasury Management Strategy during the 
course of the financial year. During 2016/17 the Committee exercised its 
delegated powers by reviewing the Treasury Management Strategy at its 
meeting on 23rd September 2016. The regulatory environment placed a much 
greater onus on members for the review and scrutiny of treasury management 
policy and activities. This report was important in that respect, as it provided 
details of the outturn position for treasury activities and highlighted compliance 
with the Council’s policies previously approved by members.

Two major landmark events had a significant influence on financial markets 
during the 2016/17 financial year. These were the EU referendum in June 2016 
and the election of President Trump in the USA in November 2016. The first 
event had an immediate impact in terms of market expectations of when the 
first increase in Bank Rate might happen. Although there had been a slight 
deterioration in interest rates for investments which meant that the investment 
market was currently flat, investments were fluid. The mid year figures would be 
available in December 2017.  

In respect of the major preceptors, around £40m was collected from Business 
Rates and £25m collected from Council Tax. No additional long term borrowing 
had been required during 2016/17. The long term debt outstanding as at 31 
March 2017 was £102.321m of which £101.321m was in relation to the HRA 
self financing payment and £1m PWLB (Public Works Loan Boards) loans.

Pg 10



9

The short term/temporary borrowing outstanding as at 31 March 2017 was 
£4.222m. No rescheduling of debt was undertaken during the year as the 
average 1% differential between PWLB new borrowing rates and premature 
repayment rates made rescheduling unviable.

It was noted that the treasury performance of South Kesteven District Council 
was favourable when compared with other local authorities in the 
benchmarking group.

The net treasury position at the end of 2016/17 was £60.74m, which comprised 
£106.543m of debt against £53.00m of investments. The report also showed 
the authorised limits to the total long-term borrowing and the operational 
boundary. 
Committee members queried whether there was of list of investments, how the 
interest rates effected investments and how often investments were reviewed. 
Members were informed there was a list in investments; low interest rates 
meant that the Council was limited on the amount and types of investments that 
could be made. The investments were monitored on a daily basis.

Reference was also made to the Council’s HRA Loan following the buyout of 
the subsidy system back in 2013 when the Council had to buy its own stock 
from the Government. The majority of the borrowing was with the Public Works 
Board over a 30 year term with the remainder (£25m) on a shorter repayment 
arrangement.

It was proposed, seconded and agreed that the contents of the annual report 
on Treasury Management Activity for 2016/17 be approved.

Decision:

The Committee approved the contents of the annual report on Treasury 
Management Activity for 2016/17.

21. OMBUDSMAN ANNUAL REPORT 2016/17

The Assistant Director, Legal and Democratic, summarised report number 
LDS233 which informed the Committee about the contents of the Ombudsman 
Annual Review Letter for 2016/17 which was appended to the report.

She explained that 13 complaints had been received by the Local Government 
Ombudsman (LGO) relating to services provided by the Council. For the same 
period the LGO had made 13 decisions. One decision related to a complaint 
that had been made in the period before the 1 April 2016. The 13 complaints 
compared well with the 22 received for the period 2015/16.

Of the 13 decisions made during the period of the Annual Review Letter, 9 
were referred back to the Council for local resolution. Of those 9 referred back, 
only 2 complainants pursued their issues as complaints through the Council’s 

Pg 11



10

complaints procedure. Both these complaints were dealt with at all 3 stages of 
the Council’s complaints procedure. For both complaints, the Council 
determined that there had been no fault by the Council in the provision of the 
service. 

One complaint relating to planning enforcement had been resubmitted to the 
LGO by the complainant. This was not contained in the statistics provided for 
the period of this Annual Review Letter. The LGO decided that no further 
investigation would be undertaken due to there being insufficient evidence of 
fault. The other complaint related to the grant of planning permission and health 
and safety and was pursued by the complainant to a judicial review in the High 
Court. The application for judicial review was not allowed by the High Court 
because the claim was determined to be totally without merit and costs were 
awarded against the complainant.

Of the remaining 4 decisions made by the LGO, 2 complaints were not upheld 
and 2 were closed after initial enquiries. The 2 complaints which were not 
upheld related to a noise nuisance investigation and banding on the housing 
register. In respect of the noise nuisance, the LGO was satisfied that there was 
no evidence of fault by the Council and the Council had correctly investigated 
the complaint about noise. In respect of the complaint about the housing 
register, the LGO was satisfied that the Council correctly considered and 
applied its housing allocations policy. 

The 2 complaints were closed because the complainant had the right of appeal 
against a refusal of planning permission and where the complaint was made by 
a parish council, the LGO confirmed that it would not investigate a complaint 
which was made by a public body.

The Committee welcomed the reduction in the number of complaints.

The Committee noted the report.

22. ANY OTHER BUSINESS, WHICH THE CHAIRMAN, BY REASONS OF 
SPECIAL CIRCUMSTANCES, DECIDES IS URGENT.

The Chairman noted that following a recent joint procurement exercise run by 
the LGA (Under PSAA) to appoint Auditors to the external audit positions via 
contract across the country, the Council’s Audit work would, from 1 April 2018, 
be undertaken by Grant Thornton. Although KPMG would be involved with 
auditing the accounts up to that date, the Chairman wanted to have noted the 
Committee’s appreciation for the work undertaken by KPMG. 

A Member requested that future Governance and Audit meetings be moved 
back to 2.00pm due to work commitments.

It was proposed, seconded and agreed that future Governance and Audit 
Committee Meetings would start at 2.00pm rather than 1.00pm.

Pg 12



11

Action point:

That the time for the meetings of the Governance and Audit Committee 
are changed from 1.00pm to 2.00pm.

23. CLOSE OF MEETING

The meeting closed at 14:55.

Pg 13



Annual Audit Letter 
2016/17

South Kesteven 
District Council
October 2017

Pg 14

Agenda Item 6



2 | 

Report sections

Summary 3

Appendices

1. Summary of reports issued

2. Audit fees

4

5

Contents 

This report is addressed to the Authority and has been prepared for the sole use of the Authority. 
We take no responsibility to any member of staff acting in their individual capacities, or to third 
parties. Public Sector Audit Appointments issued a document entitled Statement of 
Responsibilities of Auditors and Audited Bodies summarising where the responsibilities of 
auditors begin and end and what is expected from audited bodies. We draw your attention to this 
document which is available on Public Sector Audit Appointment’s website (www.psaa.co.uk).

External auditors do not act as a substitute for the audited body’s own responsibility for putting in 
place proper arrangements to ensure that public business is conducted in accordance with the 
law and proper standards, and that public money is safeguarded and properly accounted for, and 
used economically, efficiently and effectively.

We are committed to providing you with a high quality service. If you have any concerns or are 
dissatisfied with any part of KPMG’s work, in the first instance you should contact John Cornett, 
the engagement lead to the Authority, who will try to resolve your complaint. If you are 
dissatisfied with your response please contact the national lead partner for all of KPMG’s work 
under our contract with Public Sector Audit Appointments Limited, Andrew Sayers 
(andrew.sayers@kpmg.co.uk). After this, if you are still dissatisfied with how your complaint has 
been handled you can access PSAA’s complaints procedure by emailing 
generalenquiries@psaa.co.uk, by telephoning 020 7072 7445 or by writing to Public Sector Audit 
Appointments Limited, 3rd Floor, Local Government House, Smith Square, London, SW1P 3HZ.

The contacts at KPMG in 
connection with this report are:

John Cornett
Director

T: 0116 256 6064
E: john.cornett@kpmg.co.uk

Mike Norman
Manager

T: 0115 935 3554
E: michael.norman@kpmg.co.uk

Kerry Sharma
Assistant Manager

T: 0115 935 3652
E: kerry.sharma@kpmg.co.uk

Pg 15



3 | 

Summary 
This Annual Audit Letter 
summarises the outcome 
from our audit work at South 
Kesteven District Council in 
relation to the 2016/17 audit 
year. Although it is addressed 
to Members of the Authority, it 
is also intended to 
communicate these key 
messages to key external 
stakeholders, including 
members of the public, and 
will be placed on the 
Authority’s website.

A summary of the reports we 
have issued during the year is 
included at Appendix 1.

Section one

VFM conclusion

We issued an unqualified conclusion on the Authority’s 
arrangements to secure value for money (VFM conclusion) for 
2016-17 on 25 September 2017. This means we are satisfied that 
during the year the Authority had appropriate arrangements for 
securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in the use of its 
resources. 

To arrive at our conclusion we looked at the Authority’s arrangements 
for informed decision making, sustainable resource deployment and 
working with partners and third parties.

VFM risk areas

We undertook a risk assessment as part of our VFM audit work 
and identified one area of focus, regarding your arrangements for 
securing financial resilience. We took account of, amongst other 
things, your 2016-17 outturn and your financial planning for 2017/18 
and future years. The General Fund and Housing Revenue Account 
revenue outturns were largely as expected. The Authority set a 
capital programme for 2016/17 of £21.5m, but only spent £7.3m in 
the year. The slippage into the 2017/18 budget is significant and the 
Authority needs to ensure it has sufficient capacity to deliver the 
programme and keeps progress closely under review. 

The Authority set a balanced budget for 2017/18 and the Medium 
Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) provides a platform to 2019/20. The 
MTFS sets out the financial challenges up to 2019/20 and in future 
years. The MTFS acknowledges there are risks attached to the 
proposals and the Authority needs to continue to closely monitor 
progress in all these areas and ensure its MTFS is kept up to date. .

Overall, we concluded that in 2016-17, the Authority had made 
proper arrangements to ensure it took properly-informed decisions 
and deployed resources to achieve planned and sustainable 
outcomes for taxpayers and local people.

Audit opinion

We issued an unqualified opinion on the Authority’s financial 
statements on 25 September 2017. This means that we believe the 
financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial 
position of the Authority and of its expenditure and income for the 
year.

Financial statements audit

No material errors were identified during the audit and there were 
no uncorrected audit differences that we needed to report. We 
considered the Authority’s accounting practices to be appropriate, 
the draft accounts were published well ahead of the deadline and 
the quality of supporting working  papers was good.

Other information accompanying the financial statements

Whilst not explicitly covered by our audit opinion, we review other 
information that accompanies the financial statements to consider 
its material consistency with the audited accounts. This year we 
reviewed the Annual Governance Statement and Narrative Report. 
We concluded that they were consistent with our understanding 
and did not identify any issues.

Certificate

We issued our certificate on 25 September 2017. The certificate 
confirms that we have concluded the audit for 2016/17 in 
accordance with the requirements of the Local Audit & 
Accountability Act 2014 and the Code of Audit Practice.

Audit fee

The scale fee set by PSAA for 2016-17 was £47,273, excluding 
VAT. Further detail is contained in Appendix 2.

Pg 16



4 | 

Summary of reports issued
This appendix summarises the reports we issued since our last Annual Audit Letter.

Appendix 1

Jan Feb Mar Apr2017

External Audit Plan

The External Audit 
Plan set out our 
approach to the audit 
of the Authority’s 
financial statements 
and to work to support 
the VFM conclusion. 

2017

January

February

March

April

May

June

July

August

September

October

This report on summarised the outcome 
of our certification work on the 
Authority’s 2015-16 grants and returns.

Certification of Grants and Returns           
(January 2017)

The Report to Those Charged with Governance 
summarised the results of our audit work for 2016-
17 including key issues and recommendations 
raised as a result of our observations.

We also provided the mandatory declarations 
required under auditing standards as part of this 
report.

Report to Those Charged with Governance 
(September 2017)

This Annual Audit Letter provides a 
summary of the results of our audit for 
2016-17.

Annual Audit Letter (October 2017)

The Auditor’s Report included our audit 
opinion on the financial statements along 
with our VFM conclusion and our 
certificate.

Auditor’s Report (September 2017)

The External Audit Plan set out our 
approach to the audit of the Authority’s 
financial statements and to work to 
support the VFM conclusion. 

External Audit Plan (March 2017)

The Audit Fee Letter set out the 
proposed audit work and draft fee for the 
2016-17 financial year. 

Audit Fee Letter (April 2017)

Pg 17



5 | 

Audit fees

To ensure transparency about the extent of our fee relationship with the Authority we have summarised below the 
outturn against the 2016-17 planned audit fee.

External audit

The scale fee set by PSAA for the 2016-17 audit of the Authority was £47,273 (excluding VAT).

Certification of grants and returns

Under our terms of engagement with Public Sector Audit Appointments we undertake prescribed work in order to 
certify the Authority’s housing benefit grant claim. This certification work is still ongoing. The indicative scale fee set 
by PSAA for this work is £5,325. The final fee will be confirmed through our reporting on the outcome of that work in 
January 2018.

Other services

We charged £3,000 (excluding VAT) for certification of the 2015/16 Pooling of Housing Capital Receipts return. This 
work was not related to our responsibilities under the Code of Audit Practice.

Appendix 3

This appendix provides information on our final fees for the 2016-17 audit.

Pg 18



kpmg.com/uk

© 2017 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG 
network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative 
(“KPMG International”), a Swiss entity. All rights reserved. 

Designed by CREATE | CRT086038

Pg 19



 

     

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

SOUTH KESTEVEN DISTRICT COUNCIL 

Internal Audit Progress Report 

Governance and Audit Committee 

14 December 2017 
 
This report is solely for the use of the persons to whom it is addressed.  
To the fullest extent permitted by law, RSM Risk Assurance Services LLP will accept no  
responsibility or liability in respect of this report to any other party. 

 

Page 1 of 26

Pg 20

Agenda Item 7



     

 

South Kesteven District Council Internal Audit Progress Report | 1 

 

 

CONTENTS 
1 Introduction ................................................................................................................................................................... 2 

2 Reports considered at this governance and audit Committee ..................................................................................... 3 

3 Looking ahead .............................................................................................................................................................. 6 

4 Other matters ............................................................................................................................................................... 7 

Appendix A: Internal audit assignments completed to date .............................................................................................. 8 

For further information contact .......................................................................................................................................... 9 

 

 

 

 

 

 

As a practising member firm of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales (ICAEW), we are subject to its ethical 
and other professional requirements which are detailed at http://www.icaew.com/en/members/regulations-standards-and-guidance. 
 
The matters raised in this report are only those which came to our attention during the course of our review and are not necessarily 
a comprehensive statement of all the weaknesses that exist or all improvements that might be made. 
 
Recommendations for improvements should be assessed by you for their full impact before they are implemented. This report, or 
our work, should not be taken as a substitute for management’s responsibilities for the application of sound commercial practices. 
We emphasise that the responsibility for a sound system of internal controls rests with management and our work should not be 
relied upon to identify all strengths and weaknesses that may exist. Neither should our work be relied upon to identify all 
circumstances of fraud and irregularity should there be any. 
 
This report is supplied on the understanding that it is solely for the use of the persons to whom it is addressed and for the purposes 
set out herein. Our work has been undertaken solely to prepare this report and state those matters that we have agreed to state to 
them. This report should not therefore be regarded as suitable to be used or relied on by any other party wishing to acquire any 
rights from RSM Risk Assurance Services LLP for any purpose or in any context. Any party other than the Council which obtains 
access to this report or a copy and chooses to rely on this report (or any part of it) will do so at its own risk. To the fullest extent 
permitted by law, RSM Risk Assurance Services LLP will accept no responsibility or liability in respect of this report to any other 
party and shall not be liable for any loss, damage or expense of whatsoever nature which is caused by any person’s reliance on 
representations in this report.  
 
This report is released to our Client on the basis that it shall not be copied, referred to or disclosed, in whole or in part (save as 
otherwise permitted by agreed written terms), without our prior written consent.  
 
We have no responsibility to update this report for events and circumstances occurring after the date of this report.  
 

RSM Risk Assurance Services LLP is a limited liability partnership registered in England and Wales no. OC389499 at 6th floor, 25 

Farringdon Street, London EC4A 4AB.

Page 2 of 26

Pg 21



 

 South Kesteven District Council Internal Audit Progress Report | 2 

1 INTRODUCTION 

The internal audit plan 2017/18 was approved by Governance and Audit Committee on 21 March 2017 and included a 

total of 20 planned reviews. 

This report provides a summary update on progress against that plan and summarises the results of our work to date. 

Please see chart below for progress against the plan. 

 

   

 

59% 12% 29%

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

1

Assignments Complete Assignments in Progress Assignments Not Yet Due

Page 3 of 26

Pg 22



 

 South Kesteven District Council Internal Audit Progress Report | 3 

2 REPORTS CONSIDERED AT THIS GOVERNANCE 
AND AUDIT COMMITTEE 

This table informs of the audit assignments that have been completed since the last Governance and Audit 

Committee. 

The Executive Summary and Key Findings of the assignments below are attached to this progress report. 

Assignment Status Opinion issued 
Actions agreed 

H M L 

Cyber Security (5.17/18) * Final 

 

 0  4  5 

Housing Benefit (6.17/18) Final 

 

 0  2 1 

Payroll and Expenses (7.17/18) Final 

 

 0  2  0 

Risk Management (9.17/18) Final 

 

 0   1  1 

 
Follow Up 2 (11.17/18) * 
 

Final Good Progress  0  1  0 

 
 
* The Cyber Security report and the Follow Up 2 report will be presented to the Governance and Audit Committee separately. 

Page 4 of 26

Pg 23



 

 South Kesteven District Council Internal Audit Progress Report | 4 

2.1 Impact of findings to date 

 

 

Housing Benefit 

Conclusion: Substantial Assurance 

Impact on Annual Opinion: Positive 

As a result of testing undertaken, two medium priority and one low priority findings were identified, 
and management actions were agreed for all findings. 

The medium findings related to:   

• For a sample of 15 users on the housing benefits system, in one instance a declaration of interest could not 

be located and for five members of staff, a declaration was on file signed and dated, however the declaration 

was not completed in the last 12 months and was therefore out of date.  

 

• For a sample of 10 weeks BACS payments confirmed in all instances the value of the payment corresponds 

throughout the process and appropriate authorisation is in place. However, it was noted that the same person 

submitting the BACS payment was also checking the submission value. In addition, it was noted in all 10 

instances the date of checking the submission was not documented.  

 

 

Payroll and Expenses 

Conclusion: Substantial Assurance 

Impact on Annual Opinion: Positive 

As a result of testing undertaken, two medium priority findings were identified, and management 
actions were agreed for both findings. 

The medium findings related to:   

• Testing the payroll payment reports for April 2017 to September 2017 established that in one case there was 

no segregation of duties in the authorisation (transmitted by) and the checking of the BACS transmission 

report for one payroll payment run.  

 

• Testing the payroll exception reports for the period April 2017 to September 2017 identified 15 instances 

where the payroll / exception reports were not subject to checking and/or review as the reports were not 

signed and/or dated to confirm this check. On testing the BACS transmission reports and outputs reports 

testing identified three cases where the document was not dated / signed and dated and as a result it could 

not be confirmed if the reports had been checked / reviewed.  

 

Page 5 of 26

Pg 24



 

 South Kesteven District Council Internal Audit Progress Report | 5 

 

Risk Management 

Conclusion: Substantial Assurance 

Impact on Annual Opinion: Positive 

As a result of testing undertaken, one medium priority and one low priority findings were identified, 
and management actions were agreed for both findings. 

The medium finding related to:   

• Through review of RMG meeting minutes, it was confirmed that in some instances attendance from particular 

service areas was relatively poor. As such, the process of identifying, evaluating, controlling and reviewing 

risks may not be adequate which could have an impact on the service area.  

 

Page 6 of 26

Pg 25



 

 South Kesteven District Council Internal Audit Progress Report | 6 

3 LOOKING AHEAD 

Assignment area Planned 
commencement date 

Status 

Purchasing Cards – Advisory Review * n/a Draft Report Issued 

Complaints & Freedom of Information – Advisory Review * n/a Draft Report Issued 

Missed Bins * n/a In Progress 

Data Protection Q4 In Progress 

IT Review 2 – Software Development Lifecycle Q3 Scheduled 08/01/2018 

Health and Safety Q2 Scheduled 22/01/2018 

Follow Up 3 Q4 Scheduled 05/02/2018 

Corporate Governance Q3 Scheduled 05/03/2018 

 

* additional reviews requested by management – see details in section 4.1 (Changes to the audit plan). 

 

 

 

Page 7 of 26

Pg 26



 

 South Kesteven District Council Internal Audit Progress Report | 7 

4 OTHER MATTERS 

4.1 Changes to the audit plan 

Following discussion with management it has been agreed to remove the four continuous assurance reviews from the 

Internal Audit plan and allocate the days to contingency. 

At the request of management, three advisory reviews have been included in the audit plan for 2017/18 and these are: 

Housing Benefits Overpayments, Complaints & Freedom of Information and Purchasing Cards. The final report has 

been issued to management for the Housing Benefits Overpayments advisory review. Draft reports have been issued 

for the remaining advisory reviews. 

As discussed at the previous Governance and Audit Committee meeting, we have recently completed a review of 

Missed Bins and the results of that review will be presented to the next meeting of the Committee. 

Recruitment & Retention and Homelessness audits have been deferred to 2018/19 at the request of management.   

 

Recruitment & Retention is being deferred due to the implementation of a new Payroll and HR System which will be 

introduced into the organisation by May 2018. Further, one of the team of two officers who are responsible for 

recruitment and selection will be on maternity leave and the other is heavily involved in the transfer of the old 

payroll/HR system to the new. 

 

Homelessness is being deferred as the existing service provision is undergoing change with the introduction of the 

Homelessness Reduction Act 2017.  A review in 2018/19 will allow management to evaluate its systems and 

processes in line with the Act. 

4.2 Audit Needs Assessment 2018/19 

In January 2018, RSM Risk Assurance (Internal Audit) will be meeting with the Council’s Management Team to 

discuss the Internal Audit Plan for 2018/19 and the Internal Audit Strategy for 2018/19-2020/21. As part of our Audit 

Needs Assessment we will also review the Council’s strategic objectives, risk register and management reports.  

We will also take in to account any issues facing the Local Government sector; however, we would also welcome the 

Governance and Audit Committee’s input in to any auditable areas the Committee feel should be included. We would 

be happy to meet with Committee members if requested. 

 

 

 

 

  

Page 8 of 26

Pg 27



 

 South Kesteven District Council Internal Audit Progress Report | 8 

APPENDIX A: INTERNAL AUDIT ASSIGNMENTS 
COMPLETED TO DATE 

Report previously seen by the Group Audit & Risk Committee and included for information purposes only: 

Assignment Status Opinion issued 
Actions agreed 

H M L 

Asset Management Plan (HRA) 
(2.17/18) 

Final 

 

0 2 1 

Business Continuity (4.17/18) Final 

 

0 4 1 

Follow Up 1 (3.17/18) Final  Reasonable progress 0 2 0 

 

Page 9 of 26

Pg 28



 

 South Kesteven District Council Internal Audit Progress Report | 9 

FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT 

Chris Williams, Head of Internal Audit 

chris.williams@rsmuk.com 

Tel: 07753 584 993 

 

Amjad Ali, Senior Manager 

amjad.ali@rsmuk.com 

Tel: 07800 617 139 

 

Address: 

RSM Risk Assurance Services LLP 

Suite A, 7th Floor 

City Gate East 

Tollhouse Hill 

Nottingham NG1 5FS 

Phone: 0115 964 4450 

 

Page 10 of 26

Pg 29



 

  South Kesteven District Council Housing Benefit 6.17/18  

1.1 Background  

An audit of Housing Benefits was undertaken as part of the approved internal audit plan for 2017/18. 

Housing benefit is provided to claimants with lower income to help cover their rental fees and are paid to private 

tenants on a four-weekly cycle with rent rebates being paid weekly. Currently the team responsible for housing 

benefits is managed by the Benefits Manager who oversees three Technical Support Officers, three Benefit Co-

ordinator's and 13 Benefits Officers/Apprentices who process claims on a daily basis.  

New claims and changes of circumstances are received through the post, via a telephone call or electronic notification 

and supporting documentation is then required to process the claim based on set criteria being adhered to and 

eligibility requirements being met. These changes of circumstances and new claims are randomly filtered to undergo a 

quality review process by a Benefits Co-ordinator. Any overpayments created due to varying circumstances are 

recovered with a weekly batch of invoices being processed and claimants being notified. 

At the time of the audit, the Council had a total of 9,245 live housing benefit claims and since 1 April 2017 a total of 

£6,158,673 had been paid to Council tenants and £7,341,313 had been paid to Private and Housing Association 

Tenants.  

1.2 Conclusion  

Our review identified that the internal controls for the housing benefit function are in place and working effectively for 

the processing of claims and day to day management of housing benefits. However, we have identified two 'medium' 

and one ‘low’ management actions relating to user access, declarations of interest and segregation of duties in the 

BACS payment process.  

Internal audit opinion: 

Taking account of the issues identified, the Council can 

take substantial assurance that the controls upon which 

the organisation relies to manage the identified risk(s) are 

suitably designed, consistently applied and operating 

effectively. 
 

 

1.3 Key findings 

The key findings from this review are as follows: 

• Substantial procedure notes are in place relating to the housing benefit function and throughout the audit these 

were confirmed as up to date and reflective of current working practice.  

• Housing benefit parameters notified by the Department for Work and Pensions at the beginning of each financial 

year were confirmed to be updated onto the system correctly for a sample of 15 values and reviewed by the 

Benefits Manager. 

• For a sample of 20 new claims, in all instances they were processed upon receipt of adequate supporting 

documentation and accuracy checks confirmed these were set up correctly. 

HOUSING BENEFITS - EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

Page 11 of 26

Pg 30



 

  South Kesteven District Council Housing Benefit 6.17/18  

• For a sample of 20 changes in circumstances, all were amended upon receipt of supporting documentation and 

processed accurately. 

• For 15 write offs, in all instances a suitable reason for write off was documented and segregation of duties existed 

between the requester and approver. 

• For 15 overpayments, in all cases attempts had been made to recover the payments and where required they had 

been passed on to the debt recovery or sundry debtors teams. 

However, the following weaknesses were identified: 

• Through testing a sample of 15 users, it was identified that two members of staff who had now left the organisation 

had not been removed from the housing benefit system. 

• In addition, for the same sample of 15 users it was identified that in five instances a declaration of interest was not 

completed in the past 12 months as required and one declaration of interest could not be located. 

• Testing of the past 10 weeks BACS payments identified that in seven instances segregation of duties was not 

present between the officer submitting the payment and the officer checking the submission was correct. In 

addition, the date of check was not documented for any of the weeks tested.  

 

1.4 Additional information to support our conclusion 

The following table highlights the number and categories of management actions made. The detailed findings section 

lists the specific actions agreed with management to implement. 

* Shows the number of controls not adequately designed or not complied with. The number in brackets represents the total number of controls 

reviewed in this area. 

Risk Control 

design not 

effective* 

Non-

Compliance 

with controls* 

Agreed management actions 

Low Medium High 

Claims are not processed in line with 

legislation. 
0 (15) 3 (15) 1 2 0 

Total  

 

1 2 0 

Page 12 of 26

Pg 31



 

  South Kesteven District Council Housing Benefit 6.17/18  

2 DETAILED FINDINGS 

Categorisation of internal audit findings 

Priority Definition 

Low  There is scope for enhancing control or improving efficiency and quality. 

Medium Timely management attention is necessary. This is an internal control risk management issue that could lead to: Financial losses which could affect the 

effective function of a department, loss of controls or process being audited or possible regulatory scrutiny/reputational damage, negative publicity in local 

or regional media. 

High Immediate management attention is necessary. This is a serious internal control or risk management issue that may lead to: Substantial losses, violation 

of corporate strategies, policies or values, regulatory scrutiny, reputational damage, negative publicity in national or international media or adverse 

regulatory impact, such as loss of operating licences or material fines. 

 

This report has been prepared by exception. Therefore, we have included in this section, only those risks of weakness in control or examples of lapses in control identified 

from our testing and not the outcome of all internal audit testing undertaken. 

Ref Control Adequate 

control 

design 

Controls 

complied 

with 

Audit findings and implications Priority Action for management Implementation 

date 

Responsible 

owner 

Risk: Claims are not processed in line with legalisation. 

1 Access to the system is 

restricted to designated 

staff members via 

username and 

password. 

Yes No A current user list was obtained and 

testing of 15 users confirmed in all 

instances their job role requires 

access to the system and therefore 

was deemed appropriate. However, 

testing also identified two members 

of staff who have now left the 

organisation and had not had their 

access revoked.    

There is a risk that the current user 

list is not up to date and 

unauthorised members of staff could 

still access the housing benefit 

system. 

Low An annual review will be 

undertaken to confirm the 

access list to the housing 

benefits system only 

contains current staff 

members. 

13 October 2017 System Support 

Officer 

Page 13 of 26

P
g 32



 

  South Kesteven District Council Housing Benefit 6.17/18  

Ref Control Adequate 

control 

design 

Controls 

complied 

with 

Audit findings and implications Priority Action for management Implementation 

date 

Responsible 

owner 

2 Staff are required to fill 

out a declaration of 

interests form on an 

annual basis to confirm 

any relatives or close 

friends living in the 

district whose account 

they may be able to 

view on the housing 

benefits system. 

Yes No Sample testing of 15 users of the 

housing benefit system found that:   

- In nine instances an up to date 

declaration was on file signed and 

dated;  

- In one instance a declaration of 

interest could not be located and 

was now a leaver; and   

- For five members of staff, a 

declaration was on file signed and 

dated, however the declaration was 

not completed in the last 12 months 

and was therefore out of date.   

There is a risk that where 

declarations are not completed on 

an annual basis, staff may have 

access to their own or family 

members housing benefit accounts 

and can make unauthorised 

changes. 

Medium An annual review will be 

undertaken to ensure all 

declarations of interest 

are returned by staff and 

maintained on file. 

31 January 2018 System Support 

Officer 

3 Payment of housing 

benefit to private 

tenants is made on a 

four-week cycle by 

BACS and rent rebates 

are paid on a weekly 

basis by BACS.  

The list of claimants is 

processed automatically 

by the housing benefit 

system and signed off 

Yes No Testing of the last 10 weeks BACS 

payments confirmed in all instances 

the value of the payment 

corresponds throughout the process 

and appropriate authorisation is in 

place. However, it was noted that 

the same person submitting the 

BACS payment was also checking 

the submission value. In addition, it 

was noted in all 10 instances the 

Medium All BACS payments will 

be submitted and 

checked by independent 

members of staff and in 

all instances the reviews 

will be signed and dated. 

13 October 2017 Senior 

Exchequer 

Services Officer 

Page 14 of 26

P
g 33



 

  South Kesteven District Council Housing Benefit 6.17/18  

Ref Control Adequate 

control 

design 

Controls 

complied 

with 

Audit findings and implications Priority Action for management Implementation 

date 

Responsible 

owner 

by two members of the 

Compliance or Revenue 

and Benefits Team.   

The BACS are then 

further authorised by a 

senior member of the 

Finance Department 

and processed for 

payment by either the 

Exchequer Services 

and Payroll Officer or 

Senior Exchequer 

Services Officer. 

date of checking the submission was 

not documented.    

There is a risk that where 

segregations of duties do not exist, 

there is an increased chance of 

fraud or errors occurring and going 

unnoticed. In addition, there is a risk 

that errors are not picked up and 

dealt with in a timely manner if the 

submission check is not dated. 

Page 15 of 26

P
g 34



 

  South Kesteven District Council Payroll and Expenses 7.17/18 

1.1 Background  

A review of Payroll and Expenses was undertaken as part of the approved Internal Audit Plan for 2017/18. 

The Council’s integrated Payroll System, Teamspirit was introduced in March 2013. The system allows both the 

Payroll and People & Organisational Development Departments to access and update the system, preventing the 

duplication of records. The Council’s payroll function is managed by the officers within Exchequer Services and is 

overseen by the Management Accountant Team Leader.  

The Council’s payroll is paid on the third Friday of every month, with separate officers involved in the preparation and 

verification of the payroll. Amendments processed within the period are highlighted on the exception reports produced 

each month.  

New starters, leavers and amendments are input by a member of the People & Organisational Development 

Department, with an automatic system generated e-mail sent to the Payroll Department notifying them of the action 

taken. The Payroll team then update Teamspirit with information relating to the employee’s pay, including tax codes 

and National Insurance details, with a second officer reviewing the information entered for accuracy.  

Expenses are primarily submitted through the self-service portal introduced by the Council. Those employees with 

access to the portal enter the details of each expense incurred, with a workflow generated on the system for the 

relevant line manager to authorise the claim. Where employees do not have access to the portal, manual claim forms 

are completed and then authorised by the relevant manager. Expense claims are paid following authorisation, with the 

Payroll function undertaking a monthly sample check on claims submitted to ensure that management are reviewing 

receipts to support each claim.  

For the period April 2017 to September 2017 an average of 784 payroll transactions per month were processed by the 

Payroll function with the total cost of the payroll transactions ranging monthly between £880,991 to £953,731.   

1.2 Conclusion 

Our work confirmed that there are adequate controls in place for payroll however testing identified that the controls are 

not always consistently applied. Testing identified that payroll / exception reports and BACS reports / transmission 

reports were not always signed and dated and there were lapses in segregation of duties in the checking and 

reviewing of the report. 

Internal audit opinion: 

Taking account of the issues identified, the Council can 

take substantial assurance that the controls upon which 

the organisation relies to manage the identified areas are 

suitably designed, consistently applied and operating 

effectively. 
 

 

 

 

PAYROLL AND EXPENSES - EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

Page 16 of 26

Pg 35



 

  South Kesteven District Council Payroll and Expenses 7.17/18 

1.3 Key findings 

Our audit review identified that the following controls are suitably designed, consistently applied and are operating 

effectively:  

• The Financial Regulations are included within the Council's Constitution and detail responsibility for the payroll 
function. The Constitution is available on the Council's website. The Financial Regulations were last reviewed in 
April 2016.   

• Procedural documentation on the payroll processes and use of the payroll system, have been developed and 
made available to staff.  

• The Council has an approved authorised signatories list in place which details delegated authority limits for the 
approval of expense claims and BACS approvals. 

• Access to the payroll module on Teamspirit is provided to designated members of staff. On review, it was noted 
that all staff with dedicated access rights were found to be a staff member within the HR Team, Payroll Team as 
well as access provided to ICT and a supervisor user set-up. 

• New starters are input to the payroll system, by a member of the People & Organisational Development Team 
(PODT) following receipt of a completed commencement form. The commencement forms are retained on file by 
PODT. A work flow is generated overnight, with an e-mail automatically generated and sent to Payroll who update 
the system with payroll related information including tax codes, National Insurance and pension details. This 
information is reviewed by a second officer prior to payments being processed. Sample testing of 20 new starters 
did not identify any issues.   

• A leaver form is used to inform the Payroll function of all staff who are leaving employment with the Council. The 
forms are completed and authorised by the Line Manager and passed to the PODT for input onto Teamspirit prior 
to processing by the Payroll Department. The Payroll Department calculate the leaver's final payment which is 
reviewed by a second officer prior to processing and the issuing of a P45. Leaver forms are retained on file by the 
Payroll Team. Testing a sample of 20 leavers did not identify any issues.  

• Monies owed to the Council by employees are identified prior to their leave date. These are formally notified to the 
individual and an arrangement for repayment is formally agreed. Where the arrangement is not adhered to the 
individual is pursued in line with the standard debtor procedures. On testing a sample of 20 leavers there was one 
instance where an employee had outstanding monies owing to the Council and this is currently being recovered 
through the payroll as the employee had re-commenced employment with the Council shortly after leaving. 

• Amendments are input onto the system by a member of the PODT or by employees themselves via self-service 
when amending personal details. On testing a sample of 20 amendments, no issues were identified. 

• Payroll is notified of voluntary deductions by employees providing completed and signed forms and confirmation 
from scheme providers; receives formal notification of involuntary deductions in the form of court orders issued by 
the Child Support Agency, courts and other authorities. Testing a sample of 20 amendments did not identify any 
issues.  

• The Council has an Expenses Policy which outlines the approach to claiming expenses. The Policy has been 
communicated to staff via the Intranet and includes guidance on claims relating to travel, overnight 
accommodation, subsistence, entertaining expenses and rates are covered within the Expenses Policy. A user 
guide on submitting a claim has been made available to staff on the Intranet. Testing a sample of 25 self-service 
claims and five councillor claims did not identify any issues. 

 

    

 

 

Page 17 of 26

Pg 36



 

  South Kesteven District Council Payroll and Expenses 7.17/18 

However, the two medium priority findings are in relation to: 

• Testing the payroll payment reports for April 2017 to September 2017 established that in one case there was no 

segregation of duties in the authorisation (transmitted by) and the checking of the BACS transmission report for 

one payroll payment run.  

 

• Testing the payroll exception reports for the period April 2017 to September 2017 identified 15 instances where 

the payroll / exception reports were not subject to checking and/or review as the reports were not signed and/or 

dated to confirm this check. On testing the BACS transmission reports and outputs reports testing identified three 

cases where the document was not dated / signed and dated and as a result it could not be confirmed if the 

reports had been checked / reviewed.      

1.4 Additional information to support our conclusion 

The following table highlights the number and categories of management actions made. The detailed findings section 

lists the specific actions agreed with management to implement. 

* Shows the number of controls not adequately designed or not complied with. The number in brackets represents the total number of controls 

reviewed in this area.  
 

Area Control 

design not 

effective* 

Non 

Compliance 

with controls* 

Agreed management actions 

Low Medium High 

Procedural Documentation 0 (4) 0 (4) 0 0 0 

Starters 0 (1) 0 (1) 0 0 0 

Leavers 0 (2) 0 (2) 0 0 0 

Amendments 0 (1) 0 (1) 0 0 0 

Deductions 0 (1) 0 (1) 0 0 0 

Expenses 0 (3) 0 (3) 0 0 0 

Checking and Payment Authorisation 0 (5) 2 (5) 0 2 0 

Total  

 

0 2 0 

Page 18 of 26

Pg 37



 

  South Kesteven District Council Payroll and Expenses 7.17/18 | 5 

2 DETAILED FINDINGS 

Categorisation of internal audit findings 

Priority Definition 

Low  There is scope for enhancing control or improving efficiency and quality. 

Medium Timely management attention is necessary. This is an internal control risk management issue that could lead to: Financial losses which could affect the 

effective function of a department, loss of controls or process being audited or possible regulatory scrutiny/reputational damage, negative publicity in local 

or regional media. 

High Immediate management attention is necessary. This is a serious internal control or risk management issue that may lead to: Substantial losses, violation 

of corporate strategies, policies or values, regulatory scrutiny, reputational damage, negative publicity in national or international media or adverse 

regulatory impact, such as loss of operating licences or material fines. 

 

This report has been prepared by exception. Therefore, we have included in this section, only those areas of weakness in control or examples of lapses in control identified 

from our testing and not the outcome of all internal audit testing undertaken. 

Ref Control Adequate 

control 

design 

(yes/no) 

Controls 

complied 

with 

(yes/no) 

Audit findings and implications Priority Action for management Implementation 

date 

Responsible 

owner 

Area: Checking and Payment Authorisation 

1 There is segregation of 

duties in:   

The processing and 

checking of the payroll 

and the independent 

review of the payroll 

reports.  

 

Yes No Testing the payroll payment reports 

for April 2017 to September 2017 

established that:  

BACS 
 
There was no segregation of duties 
in the authorisation (transmitted by) 
and the checking of the BACS 
transmission report for one payroll 
payment run.   
 
There is an increased risk of fraud 
and / or error occurring where the 
process is undertaken by the same 
member of staff. 

Medium We will ensure that there 

is segregation of duties in 

the processing and 

checking of the payroll 

reports and the review of 

the payroll reports.   

 

30 November 

2017 

Senior 

Exchequer 

Services Officer 

Page 19 of 26

P
g 38



 

  South Kesteven District Council Payroll and Expenses 7.17/18 | 6 

Ref Control Adequate 

control 

design 

(yes/no) 

Controls 

complied 

with 

(yes/no) 

Audit findings and implications Priority Action for management Implementation 

date 

Responsible 

owner 

2 Payroll reports are 

produced and checked 

by the Payroll function 

prior to each payroll run 

and include details of 

amendments processed 

within the period.   

Once produced, the 

payroll reports, the 

BACS Output reports, 

and the BACS Request 

form is checked by 

member of staff 

processing the payroll 

and is reviewed by the 

Accounting Team 

Leader, the Senior 

Exchequer Services 

Officer of the 

Exchequer Services 

Officer. The reports are 

signed and dated to 

confirm the checking 

and review of the 

payroll reports. 

Yes No Testing of the April 2017 to 

September 2017 payroll records 

established the following:   

Payroll Reports 

 a) In two instances, it could not be 
confirmed if the changes summary 
was subject to review as the 
changes summary sheet was not 
signed and dated to confirm this 
review.   

b) In one instance the Pre-exception 
reports was not signed and dated by 
the member of staff processing the 
payroll. 

 c) In four instances the date the 
Pre-exception reports were reviewed 
was not recorded on the reports and 
as a result it could not be 
established if the review was 
undertaken on a timely basis (before 
the payroll was transmitted).   

d) In four instances the monthly 
adjustments summary was not 
signed and dated by the member of 
staff processing the payroll and as a 
result it could not be confirmed if the 
adjustment summary had been 
subject to checking.    

e) In three instances, it could not be 
confirmed that the monthly financial 
summary was subject to checking as 
the summary was not signed and 
dated to confirm this check.      

Medium Staff members involved 

in the processing, 

checking, reviewing the 

payroll, transmitting the 

payroll; and checking the 

transmission reports, will 

be reminded to ensure 

that all reports are signed 

and dated to confirm the 

checking and review of 

the reports.  Historically it 

was not a requirement to 

sign d) and e). 

30 November 

2017 

Senior 

Exchequer 

Services Officer 

Page 20 of 26

P
g 39



 

  South Kesteven District Council Payroll and Expenses 7.17/18 | 7 

Ref Control Adequate 

control 

design 

(yes/no) 

Controls 

complied 

with 

(yes/no) 

Audit findings and implications Priority Action for management Implementation 

date 

Responsible 

owner 

 f) In one instance the Post 
exception reports were not dated by 
the reviewer and as a result it could 
not be confirmed that the reports 
were reviewed on a timely basis.  

 

BACS  

g) In two instances that the BACS 

transmission check completed was 

not dated.    

h) In one instance, it could not be 

confirmed if the required checks had 

been carried out on the BACS output 

report for staff and councillors as the 

reports were not signed and dated to 

confirm this check.   

There is an increased risk of fraud 

occurring where the BACS output 

reports are not subject to checking. 

There is also a risk that error may 

not be identified and on a timely 

basis.    

 

Page 21 of 26

P
g 40



 

  South Kesteven District Council Risk Management 9.17/18 

1.1 Background  

An audit on Risk Management was undertaken as part of the agreed Internal Audit Plan for 2017/18. Our review was 

undertaken to ensure processes are in place to identify, assess and manage the risks the Council faces. 

Risk Management is fundamental to the Council’s achievement of its strategic objectives. The Council’s Leadership 

Team has a small number of interim officers who contribute to the overall risk management and control framework and 

therefore it is imperative that there is an effective risk management system and assurance framework. The 

achievement of the Council’s strategic objectives is underpinned by the effectiveness of the controls identified to 

mitigate the principal risks which would affect the objectives being attained.   

South Kesteven District Council has documented Corporate and Service Risk Registers in place. The Corporate Risk 

Register contains those risks which may impact achievement of the Council’s strategic objectives, whereas the 

Service Risk Register documents risks identified at an operational level for each service area. In order to ensure the 

risk registers are appropriate, the Council has utilised external support to ensure that its risk register is robust and 

reflective of the risk environment it operates in.  

The Corporate Risk Register is reviewed quarterly by Assistant Directors and is presented to Governance & Audit 

Committee for approval twice a year. 

 

A full review of the Service Risk Register is completed bi-annually. This process is facilitated by the Governance and 

Risk Officer having meetings with all Service Managers to discuss the risks already recorded on the Risk Register and 

to consider any new risks that needed to be included.  

 

1.2 Conclusion  

Our overall opinion was formed by undertaking interviews with key staff and reviewing documentation on the Council’s 

Risk Management procedures, to ensure processes are in place to identify, assess and manage the risks the Council 

faces. Our audit work has confirmed that the control framework in place is robust; however, we have agreed one 

‘medium’ and one ‘low’ priority management action. The ‘medium’ priority finding relates to the fact that there are clear 

inconsistencies in the level of engagement from a small number of Service Managers, which was reflected through 

review of attendance at the Risk Management Group (RMG).  

 

Internal audit opinion: 

Taking account of the issues identified, the Council can 

take substantial assurance that the controls upon which 

the organisation relies to manage the identified risk(s) are 

suitably designed, consistently applied and operating 

effectively. 
 

 

RISK MANAGEMENT - EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

Page 22 of 26

Pg 41



 

  South Kesteven District Council Risk Management 9.17/18 

 

 

1.3 Key findings 

The key findings from this review are as follows: 

• The Council has a documented Risk Management Framework which was updated in 2015 and covers the period 

2015-17. The Framework was approved by the Governance and Audit Committee on 24 September 2015. The 

Framework includes guidance on the identification, assessment, evaluation, treatment and reporting of risks. 

• The Risk Management Framework sets out the risk identification, evaluation and management process, including 

how the impact and likelihood factors should be scored. All risks were documented and confirmed to have been 

assessed in terms of likelihood and impact. The gross and net risk was also detailed. Risks were prioritised to 

ensure that the most significant risks are reviewed more often than lower risks. 

• Roles and responsibilities are set out within the Risk Management Framework for all levels throughout the Council. 

• The Council has a Corporate Risk Register in place which identifies the key strategic risks and is subject to regular 

review. All key strategic risks identified are linked to the strategic objectives of the Council.  The Corporate Risk 

Register is reviewed on a quarterly basis with the Assistant Directors. 

• Scoring of the risks is aligned to the matrix within the Framework. Through review of minutes from the Governance 

and Risk Committee, we confirmed that the Register was last subject to review in June 2017. With the recent 

changes upon the structure of the Council’s Leadership Team, it was decided not to review the registers in 

September 2017 as roles and responsibilities were not fully known, especially with the interim officers. The Risk 

Register is next due for review in December 2017. 

• Furthermore, Service Risks are reviewed and updated biannually with the Service Managers. 

• Through review of the Council's Risk Registers, it was confirmed that it included; risks from both internal and 

external sources, different types of risk (financial and operational), risks for all areas and activities, etc. There is a 

reporting process where the Service Risks are managed by Service Managers and the RMG whilst corporate risks 

are managed by Assistant Directors and considered at Governance & Audit Committee.  

• An annual report on Risk Management is presented to the Governance and Audit Committee, covering matters 

such as; Risk Management Framework, Risk Management Internal Audit, Risk Management Group, Strategic 

Reporting; and Service and Corporate Risk Registers. Review of agendas and minutes of the Governance and 

Audit Committee confirmed that the annual report was presented to the Committee on 29 June 2017. 

• The Council is part of the Greater Lincolnshire Risk Management Group (GLRMG). This is a working group 

consisting of all the councils within Lincolnshire and other interested parties. The Group last met in June 2016 to 

report on the common themes / findings for risk topics across the districts / organisations and enable better 

reporting and benchmarking. The Group aim to meet annually and is attended by the Governance & Risk Officer. 

• The Council has a web page on the intranet which is dedicated to Risk Management and can be accessed by staff 

as an initial point of contact should they have any queries on the Risk Management processes. 

However, the following control weaknesses were identified which has resulted in management actions being agreed in 

order to mitigate the risks associated: 

Page 23 of 26

Pg 42



 

  South Kesteven District Council Risk Management 9.17/18 

• Through review of RMG meeting minutes, it was confirmed that in some instances attendance from particular 

service areas was relatively poor. As such, the process of identifying, evaluating, controlling and reviewing risks 

may not be adequate which could have an impact on the service area. 

• It was confirmed that there had been no recent risk management training for staff. There is a risk that staff may not 

be fully engaged with the Risk Management process and the process may not be fully understood by the risk 

owners.  

 

1.4 Additional information to support our conclusion 

The following table highlights the number and categories of management actions made. The detailed findings section 

lists the specific actions agreed with management to implement. 

* Shows the number of controls not adequately designed or not complied with. The number in brackets represents the total number of controls 

reviewed in this area. 

 

Risk Control 

design not 

effective* 

Non 

Compliance 

with controls* 

Agreed management actions 

Low Medium High 

The Council does not have a clear 

methodology in place for identifying and 

mitigating key risks. 

0 (11) 2 (11) 1 1 0 

Total  

 

1 1 0 

Page 24 of 26

Pg 43



 

  South Kesteven District Council Risk Management 9.17/18 

2 DETAILED FINDINGS 

Categorisation of internal audit findings 

Priority Definition 

Low  There is scope for enhancing control or improving efficiency and quality. 

Medium Timely management attention is necessary. This is an internal control risk management issue that could lead to: Financial losses which could affect the 

effective function of a department, loss of controls or process being audited or possible regulatory scrutiny/reputational damage, negative publicity in local 

or regional media. 

High Immediate management attention is necessary. This is a serious internal control or risk management issue that may lead to: Substantial losses, violation 

of corporate strategies, policies or values, regulatory scrutiny, reputational damage, negative publicity in national or international media or adverse 

regulatory impact, such as loss of operating licences or material fines. 

 

This report has been prepared by exception. Therefore, we have included in this section, only those risks of weakness in control or examples of lapses in control identified 

from our testing and not the outcome of all internal audit testing undertaken. 

Ref Control Adequate 

control 

design 

(yes/no) 

Controls 

complied 

with 

(yes/no)  

Audit findings and implications Priority Action for management Implementation 

date 

Responsible 

owner 

Risk: The Council does not have a clear methodology in place for identifying and mitigating key risks. 

1 There is a dedicated 

Risk Management 

Group (RMG) which 

meets quarterly to 

discuss the risks faced 

by the Council. Terms 

of Reference have been 

defined for this Group. 

Yes No Through review of the attendance 

levels at the RMG meetings, it was 

evident that the levels of 

engagement across each of the 

service areas differs. Some Service 

Managers attend every meeting 

whilst other Managers rely on 

deputies to discharge their duties. It 

was confirmed that in some 

instances attendance from some 

service areas was relatively poor. 

Without attending the RMG 

meetings, there is a risk that 

Managers or representatives from 

service areas are not monitoring and 

reviewing their risks regularly, or 

Medium Mandatory attendance at 

Risk Management Group 

(RMG) meetings will be 

communicated to Service 

Managers and/or 

representatives from 

each service area.   

Attendance at RMG 

meetings will be 

monitored going forward 

to ensure that all service 

areas are represented at 

meetings. 

31 January 2018 All Service 

Managers 

Page 25 of 26

P
g 44



 

  South Kesteven District Council Risk Management 9.17/18 

Ref Control Adequate 

control 

design 

(yes/no) 

Controls 

complied 

with 

(yes/no)  

Audit findings and implications Priority Action for management Implementation 

date 

Responsible 

owner 

may not be aware of the risk profile 

across the Council. 

2 Training is provided to 

the appropriate staff on 

Risk Management. 

Yes No The Council’s Leadership Team has 

a small number of interim officers 

who contribute to the overall risk 

management and control framework 

and therefore it is imperative that 

there is an effective risk 

management system and assurance 

framework 

Low A training and 

development programme 

will be developed and 

provided to all Officers 

with responsibility for 

risk. 

31 January 2018 Governance and 

Risk Officer 

Page 26 of 26

P
g 45



Document is Restricted

Pg 46

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



 

 

 

SOUTH KESTEVEN DISTRICT 

COUNCIL  

Follow Up 2 

FINAL 

Internal audit follow up report: 11.17/18 

18 November 2017 
 

This report is solely for the use of the persons to whom it is addressed. 

To the fullest extent permitted by law, RSM Risk Assurance Services LLP  

will accept no responsibility or liability in respect of this report to any other party. 
Pg 64

Agenda Item 8



     

 

  South Kesteven District Council Follow Up 2 -11.17/18 | 1 

CONTENTS 
1 Executive summary ...................................................................................................................................................... 2 

2 Findings and management actions .............................................................................................................................. 4 

Appendix A: Definitions for progress made ....................................................................................................................... 5 

Appendix B: Scope ............................................................................................................................................................ 6 

Appendix C: Actions completed ........................................................................................................................................ 7 

For further information contact .......................................................................................................................................... 8 

 

As a practising member firm of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales (ICAEW), we are subject to its ethical and other 
professional requirements which are detailed at http://www.icaew.com/en/members/regulations-standards-and-guidance. 

The matters raised in this report are only those which came to our attention during the course of our review and are not necessarily a 
comprehensive statement of all the weaknesses that exist or all improvements that might be made. Management actions raised for improvements 
should be assessed by you for their full impact before they are implemented. This report, or our work, should not be taken as a substitute for 
management’s responsibilities for the application of sound commercial practices. We emphasise that the responsibility for a sound system of 
internal controls rests with management and our work should not be relied upon to identify all strengths and weaknesses that may exist. Neither 
should our work be relied upon to identify all circumstances of fraud and irregularity should there be any. 

This report is solely for the use of the persons to whom it is addressed and for the purposes set out herein. This report should not therefore be 
regarded as suitable to be used or relied on by any other party wishing to acquire any rights from RSM Risk Assurance Services LLP for any 
purpose or in any context. Any third party which obtains access to this report or a copy and chooses to rely on it (or any part of it) will do so at its 
own risk. To the fullest extent permitted by law, RSM Risk Assurance Services LLP will accept no responsibility or liability in respect of this report to 
any other party and shall not be liable for any loss, damage or expense of whatsoever nature which is caused by any person’s reliance on 
representations in this report. 

This report is released to you on the basis that it shall not be copied, referred to or disclosed, in whole or in part (save as otherwise permitted by 
agreed written terms), without our prior written consent. 

We have no responsibility to update this report for events and circumstances occurring after the date of this report.  

RSM Risk Assurance Services LLP is a limited liability partnership registered in England and Wales no. OC389499 at 6th floor, 25 Farringdon 
Street, London EC4A 4AB. 

Debrief held  3 November 2017 Internal audit team Chris Williams, Head of Internal Audit 

Robert Barnett, Director 

Amjad Ali, Senior Manager  

Iain Daire, Assistant Manager  

Laura Bamford, Lead Auditor 

Draft report issued 

 

Revised draft issued 

15 November 2017 

 

17 November 2017 

Responses received 17 November 2017 

Final report issued 18 November 2017 Client sponsor Richard Wyles, Corporate Finance 

Manager 

Tracey Elliott, Governance and Risk 

Officer 

Distribution Richard Wyles, Corporate Finance 

Manager 

Tracey Elliott, Governance and Risk 

Officer 

Pg 65

http://www.icaew.com/en/members/regulations-standards-and-guidance


 

  South Kesteven District Council Follow Up 2 -11.17/18 | 2 

1.1 Introduction 

As part of the approved internal audit periodic plan for 2017/18 we have undertaken a review to follow up progress 

made by the Council to implement the previously agreed management actions. The audits considered as part of the 

follow up review were: 

• 08.16/17 IT Network Resilience and Recovery; 

• 02.17/18 Asset Management Plan (HRA); and 

• 03.17/18 Follow Up 1 (Income and Bank + Purchase Orders and Creditors). 

The five management actions considered in this review comprised of three 'medium' and two 'low' priority 

management actions. Concentrating on the actions classified as 'medium', the focus of this review was to provide 

assurance that all actions previously made have been adequately implemented.  

1.2 Conclusion 

Taking account of the issues identified in the remainder of the report and in line with our definitions set out in Appendix 

A, in our opinion South Kesteven District Council has demonstrated good progress in implementing agreed 

management actions. 

We have reiterated management actions where these have not yet been implemented and we have made new / 

revised management actions where appropriate; these are detailed in the action plan. 

The following graph highlights the number of management actions reviewed and the progress made at the time of the 

review: 

 

 

 

 

  

0 1 2 3

Follow Up 1

Asset Management Plan
(HRA)

IT Network Resilience
Implemented (Incl
Superseded)

Not implemented

In progress

Not due

1 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

Pg 66



 

  South Kesteven District Council Follow Up 2 -11.17/18 | 3 

1.3 Progress on actions  

Implementation 

status by review 

Number of 

actions 

agreed 

Status of management actions   

Implemented 

(1) 

Implementation 

ongoing 

(2) 

Not 

implemented 

(3) 

Superseded 

(4) 

Not yet 

due  

(5) 

Confirmed as 

completed or 

no longer 

necessary 

(1) + (4) 

08.16/17 IT 

Network 

Resilience and 

Recovery 

1 0 1 0 0 0 0 

02.17/18 Asset 

Management Plan 

(HRA) 

2 2 0 0 0 0 2 

03.17/18 Follow 

Up 1 (Income and 

Bank + Purchase 

Orders and 

Creditors) 

2 1 0 0 1 0 2 

Implementation 

status by 

management 

action priority 

Number of 

actions 

agreed 

Status of management actions   

Implemented 

(1) 

Implementation 

ongoing 

(2) 

Not 

implemented 

(3) 

Superseded 

(4) 

Not yet 

due  

(5) 

Confirmed as 

completed or 

no longer 

necessary 

(1)+(4) 

Medium 3 2 1 0 0 0 2 

Low 2 1 0 0 1 0 2 

Totals 
5 3 1 0 1 0 4 

Pg 67



 

  South Kesteven District Council Follow Up 2 -11.17/18 | 4 

2 FINDINGS AND MANAGEMENT ACTIONS 

This report has been prepared by exception. Therefore, we have included only those actions graded as 2 and 3. Each action followed up has been categorised in line with 

the following: 

Status Detail 

1 The entire action has been fully implemented. 

2 The action has been partly though not yet fully implemented. 

3 The action has not been implemented. 

4 The action has been superseded and is no longer applicable. 

5 The action is not yet due. 

 

Ref Management action Original date Original 

priority  

Audit finding Current 

status 

Updated management 

action 

Priority 

issued 

Revised 

date 

Owner 

responsible 

08.16/17 IT Network Resilience and Recovery        

1 Full test of failover to the 

Disaster Recovery site will be 

performed in 2017. Minimum 

disaster recovery test frequency 

will be documented within the IT 

Disaster Recovery Plan. Once 

testing commences a central 

register to record lessons learnt 

from the various disaster 

recovery test exercises carried 

out by SKDC will be maintained.  

Once completed, the register 

will be reviewed prior to the 

update of the IT Disaster 

Recovery Plan documentation to 

ensure all relevant changes are 

reflected within the updated 

Plan. 

8 September 

2017 

Medium We were informed by the 

Service Manager IT 

Services that a failover 

exercise was planned for 

September 2017 

however, this was not 

executed due to a 

problem with the 

infrastructure providers. 

Evidence was seen on 

the central log that the 

exercise was scheduled 

for September. Review of 

the IT Disaster Recovery 

Plan could not identify a 

minimum disaster 

recovery test frequency. 

2 Full test of failover to 

the Disaster Recovery 

site will be performed in 

2017.  Minimum 

disaster recovery test 

frequency will be 

documented within the 

IT Disaster Recovery 

Plan. 

Medium 22 December 

2017 

Service 

Manager IT 

Services 

P
g 68



 

  South Kesteven District Council Follow Up 2 -11.17/18 | 5 

The following opinions are given on the progress made in implementing actions. This opinion relates solely to the 

implementation of those actions followed up and does not reflect an opinion on the entire control environment 

Progress in 

implementing 

actions 

Overall number of 

actions fully 

implemented 

Consideration of 

high actions 

Consideration of 

medium actions 

Consideration of low actions 

Good > 75 percent  None outstanding None outstanding All low actions outstanding are 

in the process of being 

implemented 

Reasonable 51 – 75 percent None outstanding 75 percent of medium 

actions made are in 

the process of being 

implemented 

75 percent of low actions made 

are in the process of being 

implemented 

Little 30 – 50 percent  All high actions 

outstanding are in 

the process of 

being implemented 

50 percent of medium 

actions made are in 

the process of being 

implemented 

50 percent of low actions made 

are in the process of being 

implemented 

Poor < 30 percent  Unsatisfactory 

progress has been 

made to implement 

high actions 

Unsatisfactory 

progress has been 

made to implement 

medium actions 

Unsatisfactory progress has 

been made to implement low 

actions 

 

 

APPENDIX A: DEFINITIONS FOR PROGRESS MADE 

Pg 69



 

  South Kesteven District Council Follow Up 2 -11.17/18 | 6 

Scope of the review 

The internal audit assignment has been scoped to provide assurance on how South Kesteven District Council 

manages the following objective:   

Objective of the area under review 

To ensure that progress with implementing agreed management actions is satisfactory in the context of ensuring that 

there is no significant risk to the company being able to meet its strategic aims. 

 

When planning the audit, the following areas for consideration and limitations were agreed: 

Areas for consideration: 

• 08.16/17 IT Network Resilience and Recovery; 

• 02.17/18 Asset Management Plan (HRA); and 

• 03.17/18 Follow Up 1 (Income and Bank + Purchase Orders and Creditors). 

 

Limitations to the scope of the audit assignment:  

• The follow up will only cover all management actions and actions made in the identified reports. 

• We will not review the whole control framework of the areas listed above. Therefore, we are not providing assurance 

on the entire risk and control framework of these areas. 

• Where testing has been undertaken, our samples have been selected over the period since actions were 

implemented or controls enhanced. 

• Our work does not provide absolute assurance that material errors, loss or fraud do not exist. 

 

 

APPENDIX B: SCOPE 

Pg 70



 

  South Kesteven District Council Follow Up 2 -11.17/18 | 7 

From the testing conducted during this review we have found the following actions to have been fully implemented and 

are now closed: 

Assignment title Management actions 

02.17/18 Asset Management Plan 

(HRA) 

Officers will be reminded to upload survey data as soon as 

possible after completing the survey. We will monitor upload 

dates to ensure data is updated in a timely manner. We will 

continue to conduct surveys and cleanse the data to bring the 

database up to date. Reports will be run regularly to identify the 

7% of properties with assumed data until all properties have 

been surveyed and all data is verified. Quality checking will 

continue to cleanse data of duplicate and any missing attributes. 

Medium 

02.17/18 Asset Management Plan 

(HRA) 

Additions and removals from the Housing Asset Register will be 

updated as soon as possible following notification of the change. 

A report will be regularly produced and reviewed to identify any 

inaccurate or missing changes to the register. 

Medium 

03.17/18 Follow Up 1 (Income and 

Bank) 

We noted that when compared to equivalent procedure notes of 

other local authorities, the SKDC procedure note is limited in its 

detail and does not provide specific information or screen shots 

of the process.  The existing procedure note for the handling and 

banking of cash within Building Control will be further developed 

and reviewed by the Building Control Manager to ensure it is fit 

for purpose. 

Low 

03.17/18 Follow Up 1 (Purchase Orders 

and Creditors) 

We will continue to develop procedural guidance detailing the 

correct approach to the treatment of retrospective purchase 

orders and non-purchase order processed invoices.  

This will then be communicated to all Service Managers and staff 

who procure goods. 

Low 

 

APPENDIX C: ACTIONS COMPLETED 

Pg 71



 

  South Kesteven District Council Follow Up 2 -11.17/18 | 8 

 

Chris Williams, Head of Internal Audit 

Chris.Williams@rsmuk.com 

0115 964 4450  

 

Robert Barnett, Director 

Robert.Barnett@rsmuk.com 

0115 964 4450  

 

Amjad Ali, Senior Manager 

Amjad.Ali@rsmuk.com 

07800 617139 

 

Iain Daire, Assistant Manager 

Iain.Daire@rsmuk.com 

07528 970048 

 

FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT 

Pg 72

mailto:Chris.Williams@rsmuk.com
mailto:Robert.Barnett@rsmuk.com
mailto:Amjad.Ali@rsmuk.com
mailto:Iain.Daire@rsmuk.com


GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE

Report of: Councillor Adam Stokes
Cabinet Member for Finance

Report to:

Date:

Subject:

GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE

14 December 2017

CFM445 Corporate Risk Register Update

Decision
Proposal: None

Relevant 
Cabinet 
Member:

Councillor Adam Stokes
                               Cabinet Member for Finance

Report author:

Reviewed by:

Signed off by:

Approved for 
publication

Tracey Elliott – Governance & Risk Officer
01476 406038 – t.elliott@southkesteven.gov.uk
29 November 2017

Richard Wyles – Assistant Director Finance
01476 406210 – r.wyles@southkesteven.gov.uk
29 November 2017

Debbie Mogg  – Interim Strategic Director Resources
01476 406301 – debbie.mogg@southkesteven.gov.uk
1 December 2017

Cllr Adam Stokes – Cabinet Member for Finance
4 December 2017

SUMMARY

One of the key areas for the Committee as part of its terms of reference is to monitor 
and review the risk management arrangements in place and the activities that are being 
undertaken in order to mitigate those risks. In accordance with the agreed work plan the 
Committee is presented with the Corporate Risk Register on a six monthly basis.

RECOMMENDATION

The Governance and Audit Committee is asked to note the contents of this report and 
review and approve the updated Corporate Risk Register as attached at Appendix A.

Pg 73

Agenda Item 9

mailto:t.elliott@southkesteven.gov.uk
mailto:r.wyles@southkesteven.gov.uk
mailto:debbie.mogg@southkesteven.gov.uk


1. BACKGROUND TO REPORT

1.1 Corporate Risk Register

1.2 The Committee last approved the Corporate Risk Register in June 2017 where 
it was agreed to include cyber risk given that the threat is a constantly evolving 
one and the profile of the Council as a potential target.  Whilst we have all of the 
barriers of strength in place to help prevent a successful attack (including a new 
educational awareness programme), inclusion of this risk shows due diligence 
and ensures that the risk gets the scrutiny it deserves as a risk to our 
organisation.

1.3 The Corporate Risk Register has been further updated is attached as Appendix 
A.  

1.4 In line with best practice, it is proposed that an externally facilitated workshop is 
undertaken in the new year to review the risk register to ensure it reflects the 
environment (both internal and external) the Council is working within and to 
propose any new risks that may have corporate implications.  The outcomes of 
the review will be presented to the Committee at the next risk register update 
presentation in June.  

2. OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED

2.1 None.

3. RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS 

3.1 This report has no direct impact on the Council’s resources, including finance/ 
budget, people, land/property etc.

4. RISK AND MITIGATION 

4.1 None.

5. ISSUES ARISING FROM IMPACT ANALYSIS (EQUALITY, SAFEGUARDING 
etc.)

5.1 None.

6. CRIME AND DISORDER IMPLICATIONS

6.1 None.

7. COMMENTS OF FINANCIAL SERVICES

7.1 These are contained within the report where appropriate.

8. COMMENTS OF LEGAL AND DEMOCRATIC SERVICES

8.1 Members of the Committee are responsible for monitoring actions taken and to 
be taken on behalf of the Council to identify corporate risks and assess whether 

Pg 74



they are being effectively managed.  It is essential they are kept up to date with 
details of the risks and how they have been mitigated.

9. COMMENTS OF OTHER RELEVANT SERVICES 

9.1 None.

10. APPENDICES

10.1 Appendix A – Corporate Risk Register 

11. BACKGROUND PAPERS

11.1 None.

Pg 75



DRAFT Corporate Risk Register December 2017

Page 1 of 5

Corporate Risk Themes Existing Controls/Plans/Mitigations
(and judged effectiveness)

Residual Risk 
Score

Action to be taken to 
enhance or expand existing 
controls

Timeline

1. Ensuring effectiveness of contingency plans/ recovery 
plans for key locations/systems

Owner:  Assistant Director Environment

Context/Notes
This risk focuses on the Council’s failure to respond and lead in an 
effective manner to a major incident or event response. This could be 
within the Council itself ie major IT infrastructure failure, building 
fire/flood or wider within the Community itself, created via an external 
event or emergency. 

Therefore not achieving the intended outcome or making the situation 
worse, thus wasting resources further, contributing to damage/injury, as 
well as a high likelihood of reputation damage and potential for legal 
claims against the Council (even corporate manslaughter potential).

This risk is also linked to Risk 3 which relates to failure of a key supplier on 
which the Council relies and therefore may render services delivered by 
the Council inoperable.

 Emergency Plan (EP) maintained and regularly reviewed to 
ensure fit for use   (Effective)

 Desk top training exercise undertaken to test the Business 
Continuity Plan (BCP). Training needs identified and addressed 
via lessons learned   (Effective)

 ICT Disaster Recovery Plan  (Effective)

 BCPs and Business Impact Assessments that identifies 
restoration timescales for key services, with the premises 
relocation plan dealing with physical/site options   (Partially 
effective)

Likelihood = 1
x

Impact = 3
=

Medium 3

1.1 Telephony resilience now 
introduced 

1.2 Review of completed 
BCPs by Assistant 
Directors

1.3 Review of backup power 
arrangements

Q3 2017-18

Q3 2017-18

Q3 2017-18

2. Maintaining an effective internal control environment 
(able to mitigate against material failure)

Owner:  Assistant Director Legal & Democratic 
(Assistant Director Finance)

Context/Notes
This risk focuses on the potential for failure of the Council’s core internal 
control (and governance) framework but leading to a significant loss ie 
financial and otherwise eg H&S failing. 

In effect the Council should be in a position to mitigate such a risk through 
rigorous review of design and application of the controls, hence ensuring 
that internal audit and other assurance activities are appropriately 
focussed. 

The ramifications of a significant control risk failure are substantial, not 
only with regard to the loss but often the rectification costs post event, 
including financial and reputational.

 Annual internal audit plan developed by senior officers and 
members is targeted at key risks areas and responsive to new 
areas of risk  (Effective)

 External/internal audit regime   (Effective)

 Corporate governance, fraud and health & safety team 
resource   (Effective)

 Development of staff training plan in connection with core 
responsibilities and duties ie data protection, financial rules, 
freedom of information etc   (Partially effective)

 Quarterly assurance statements compiled and reviewed by 
Assistant Directors testing compliance with key business 
activities, supporting Annual Governance Statement 
compilation   (Partially effective)

 Range of Performance Indicators that monitor internal 
controls   (Effective)

Likelihood = 2
x

Impact = 3
=

High 6

2.1 Review and update of key 
polices to ensure they 
match the current 
working and internal 
control environment with 
clarification of 
responsibilities and 
supported training

2.2 Strengthen level of 
challenge re outcomes 
from quarterly assurance 
statements to ensure that 
areas in need of 
improvement are 
highlighted and actions 
agreed to make 
improvement required

Q4 2017-18

Ongoing

P
g 76

A
ppendix A



DRAFT Corporate Risk Register December 2017

Page 2 of 5

Corporate Risk Themes Existing Controls/Plans/Mitigations
(and judged effectiveness)

Residual Risk 
Score

Action to be taken to 
enhance or expand existing 
controls

Timeline

 Maintenance of a range of polices that underpin the control 
framework – financial regulations, counter fraud strategy, risk 
management framework, contract procedure rules coupled 
with staff induction training and communication of changes 
when they occur (supplemented by policy/procedure 
compliance software)   (Partially effective)

 Regular reporting at member level at Governance and Audit 
Committee   (Effective)

 Compliance with transparency code  (Effective)

 Compliance with Local Code of Corporate Governance 
(Effective)

3. Ensuring ongoing resilience and quality in third parties 
ie partners, major providers and suppliers etc

Owner:  Assistant Directors

Context/Notes
This risk relates to the potential for the failure of a major supplier of 
Council services or partner with whom the Council co-delivers/ enables 
provision of services or operations. In the event of such a failure, either in 
resilience or quality, then the Council would be significantly compromised 
and would have to undertake major remedial work.

The Council has strengthened its contract management process, 
particularly focussing on post-award. However this is still in the process of 
embedding and demonstrating that it is fully effective, including provision 
of contract management training to all relevant staff. 

 Assessment of bids/tenders through scoring of evaluation 
criteria, financial and health & safety diligence checks prior to 
award of contract   (Effective)

 Regular monitoring meetings with contractors throughout life 
of contract   (Partially effective)

 Some contracts based on open book approach to financial 
monitoring   (Partially effective)

 Contracts database kept up to date by individual business 
areas and could be used to identify key contracts/partnerships 
or suppliers   (Partially effective)

 Post contract award arrangements in place for ensuring 
ongoing resilience, quality and financial stability of third 
parties   (Partially effective)

 Category spend analysis to help identify key suppliers to the 
Council   (Effective)

 Training on forms of contract   (Effective)

Likelihood = 2
x

Impact = 3
=

High 6

3.1 Contract management 
training for relevant staff 
to be arranged

3.2 Utilise category spend 
analysis to identify and 
better manage key 
strategic suppliers

3.3 Review current 
procurement procedures 
and documentation to 
ensure that robust due 
diligence is exercised to 
assess the financial 
resilience of prospective 
suppliers

3.4 Contract management 
and specification training 
to be undertaken by 
Procurement Lincolnshire

 

Q4 2017-18

Q4 2017-18

Q2 2017-18

Q4 2017-18

P
g 77



DRAFT Corporate Risk Register December 2017

Page 3 of 5

Corporate Risk Themes Existing Controls/Plans/Mitigations
(and judged effectiveness)

Residual Risk 
Score

Action to be taken to 
enhance or expand existing 
controls

Timeline

4. Ensuring continued financial resilience

Owner:  Assistant Director Finance

Context/Notes
This risk relates to the Council being unable to properly execute and 
achieve its Medium Term Financial Plan (MTFP). 

The Council has recently developed a transformation plan which will 
position the Council to be self-sufficient by the close of the financial year 
2018/19. The successful transformation of the Council will not only impact 
on the Council outlook and culture ie a council that makes good evidenced 
based decisions and gets things done,  but will also have a significant 
impact on the Council finances. 

Therefore non achievement/delivery of the assumptions will mean a 
radical financial re-think, including potentially a significant draw on 
existing Council reserves during the life of the MTFP.

This risk is also closely linked to Risk 5 in that the delivery of the Council 
transformation plan is reliant on ensuring that the Council has available 
suitable skills and experiences to support initiatives. 

 Annual review of MTFP updating the 5 year horizon scan 
including reserve levels and future changes to funding   
(Effective)

 Annual budget setting for revenue and capital including 
funding   (Effective)

 Utilisation of external financial support that provides support 
for funding modelling  (Effective)

 Regular budget monitoring reports and updates to senior 
officers and members  (Effective)

 Effective delivery of the transformation plan that includes 
actions that will support the closing of future budget gaps  
(Partially effective)

 Treasury Management Strategy to ensure the Council are 
acting within the prudential indicators   (Effective)

 Transformation initiatives put forward for evaluation   
(Partially effective)

 Local Authority Controlled Company established but not yet 
operating   (Partially effective)

 Commercial investment fund created (Effective)

 Healthy financial reserves as a contingency (Effective)

Likelihood = 2
x

Impact = 2
=

Medium 4

4.1 Creation and 
establishment of a more 
flexible budget framework 
(dynamic and responsive 
– rather than set only 
once)

4.2 Development/establishm
ent of mechanisms for 
measuring, monitoring 
and reporting on progress 
and performance and 
management of risk 
associated with the 
transformational priorities 
and LACC business plans

2017-18

2017-18

5. Identifying, recruiting, retaining and developing key 
skills/professions to deliver the transformational 
priorities

 
Owner:  Assistant Director Transformation & Change

Context/Notes
This risk relates to the Council being unable to obtain, maintain and create 
sufficient staffing capacity and capability to successfully achieve the 
transformational priorities which may in some cases require a whole new 

 The new Council People strategy (currently waiting 
publication)   (Effective)

 The staff requisition process (assessment of needs and 
business case re posts)  (Effective)

 Leadership Development Programme to change mindsets, 
encourage collaboration and engender a culture that enables 
change and innovation   (Partially effective)

Likelihood = 3
x

Impact = 3
=

High 9

5.1 Develop a programme of 
events that will  enable 
cultural change, 
encourage innovation and 
create alignment between 
the Corporate 
Management Team, 
members, staff and 
stakeholders

Q4 2017-18

P
g 78



DRAFT Corporate Risk Register December 2017

Page 4 of 5

Corporate Risk Themes Existing Controls/Plans/Mitigations
(and judged effectiveness)

Residual Risk 
Score

Action to be taken to 
enhance or expand existing 
controls

Timeline

range of skill sets that do not currently exist at the Council. 

If the Council is unable to manage this risk then there is a high likelihood 
of the transformational priorities failing or achieving sub-optimal returns, 
therefore impacting on communities of SKDC and the MTFP. This is 
coupled with increasing pressures created on existing resources through 
the likes of regionalisation and unitary status challenges.

Key to the above will be ensuring that: 

 The Council keeps under close watch recruitment, talent development 
and retention, as well as use of external specialists

 Partnership and collaborative working is optimised across the district
 An appropriate operating environment and culture is created that will 

enable the necessary changes/ transformation to occur – this may 
require a review of the scheme of delegation and a re-assessment of 
risk appetite at all levels in the Council, including members

 Member/officer mind sets are aligned regards the transformation 
plan initiatives enabling the appropriate cultural change

The risk is that the Council will not be able to achieve this within the time 
available. There is also an implication here on the Council finances as 
there is reliance on transformation outcomes to ensure achievement of 
the MTFP.

Therefore this risk is closely linked to Risk 4.

Note:  The above risk does also have implications for the Council to 
maintain business as usual functions, in particular professional areas 
where the Council is experiencing retention/recruitment difficulties.  

 Learning and development programme providing training, 
tools and techniques to develop the necessary skills   
(Effective)

 Performance review (PDR)   (Partially effective)

 Project Management Office established   (Effective)

 Healthy financial reserves as a contingency – can be used to 
fund hires, agency staff, interims, consultants   (Effective)

5.2 Completion of people 
strategy review focussing 
on workforce planning 
which will identify the 
future resource and skill 
requirements and support 
the development of a new 
targeted learning and 
development programme 
and how staff 
performance can be more 
effectively reviewed and 
managed

5.3 Key project resource 
planning has been 
initiated

5.4 Investigate and identify 
further collaborations 
that will support building 
capacity and capability 
(and resilience). Including 
both public and corporate 
business)

5.5 Review of staff pay and 
reward framework

Q3 2017-18

Q2 2017-18

Ongoing

Q4 2017-18

6. Ensuring robust security measures to protect the 
council’s data and assets from cyber threats.

Owner:  Assistant Director Transformation & Change

Context/Notes
This risk relates to the Council’s ability to defend itself against the 
constantly evolving threat from cyber based attack. The Council, in 
common with other public bodies, should be regarded as a high profile 
target given the impact and publicity a successful attack can have.

 An IT Security Policy is in place which is reviewed on a regular 
basis   (Effective)

 Antivirus software – updated every 30 minutes with on access 
file scanning enabled.  Anti-virus activity regularly reviewed   
(Effective)

 Windows Server Update Services (WSUS) used to manage 
patches on its Windows servers and PCs.  Patches are set to be 
automatically downloaded and installed when they become 
available on the WSUS server   (Effective)

Likelihood = 1
x

Impact = 4
=

Medium 4

6.1 Sandbox to be upgraded 
and fully implemented

6.2 IT Acceptable Use Policy 
to be rolled out and 
signed by all IT system 
users

6.3 Continued tightening of 
existing IT Security Policy 
to ensure measures adapt 

Q1 2018/19

Q3 2017/18

Ongoing

P
g 79



DRAFT Corporate Risk Register December 2017

Page 5 of 5

Corporate Risk Themes Existing Controls/Plans/Mitigations
(and judged effectiveness)

Residual Risk 
Score

Action to be taken to 
enhance or expand existing 
controls

Timeline

The Council, through the measures in place, repels almost on a daily basis 
“attack vectors” launched by adversaries from across the globe. The risk 
to the Council of not maintaining these effective controls and it’s 
continuing to invest in these countermeasures is very high.

The consequences of a successful attack can have a number of 
consequences, not just operational but also reputational. The impact is 
not just an internal one, but it also has consequences for our customers if 
we cannot provide our essential services.

Therefore this risk is closely linked to Risk 1 (Business Continuity) and Risk 
2 (Effective Internal Controls).

 Removable media security is controlled via the antivirus 
software   (Effective)

 There are three firewalls in place on the Council’s network.  A 
default deny-all principle is adopted for the firewall rule base 
with a limited number of permitted connections to the 
network   (Effective) 

 End point encryption   (Effective)

 A programme of familiarisation training is in place using the 
MetaCompliance platform which simulates Malware attacks 
and provides training and support to re-enforce the message   
(Effective)

 Regular, independent, penetration testing is carried out to 
audit/prove the effectiveness of the measures in place   
(Effective)

to the changing threat

6.4 Broadening of training 
and familiarisation

6.5 Further tightening around 
public access in line with 
PREVENT (one of four 
strands of the 
government's counter-
terrorism strategy) 
requirements

6.6 Developing closer 
relationships with the 
Government Security 
Services to improve 
awareness of threats

Ongoing

Q3 2017/18  to 
Q2 2018/19

Ongoing

Controls effectiveness judgement (assessment by Assistant Directors):

Effective = design of control/mitigation is appropriate and is consistently applied
Partially effective = improvements in design of control and application required to make effective
Not effective = the control does achieve the desired outcome

P
g 80



GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE

Report of: Councillor Adam Stokes
Cabinet Member for Finance

Report to:

Date:

Subject:

Governance and Audit Committee

14 December 2017

CFM431 Counter Fraud Annual Report 2016-17

Decision
Proposal: None

Relevant 
Cabinet 
Member:

Councillor Adam Stokes
                               Cabinet Member for Finance

Report author:

Reviewed by:

Signed off by:

Approved for 
publication

Tracey Elliott – Governance & Risk Officer
01476 406038 – t.elliott@southkesteven.gov.uk
29 November 2017

Richard Wyles – Assistant Director Finance
01476 406210 – r.wyles@southkesteven.gov.uk
29 November 2017

Debbie Mogg  – Interim Strategic Director Resources
01476 406301 – debbie.mogg@southkesteven.gov.uk
1 December 2017

Cllr Adam Stokes – Cabinet Member for Finance
4 December 2017

SUMMARY

In accordance with the terms of reference of the Committee it is a requirement to 
produce an annual report on the counter fraud arrangements in place and the activities 
undertaken. Counter fraud is fundamental to the Council’s achievement of its strategic 
objectives. The report being presented covers the financial year 2016-17 and details the 
various aspects of work delivered during the course of the year. 

RECOMMENDATION

The Governance and Audit Committee is asked to approve the Counter Fraud Annual 
Report in respect of the financial year 2016-17.

Pg 81

Agenda Item 10

mailto:t.elliott@southkesteven.gov.uk
mailto:r.wyles@southkesteven.gov.uk
mailto:debbie.mogg@southkesteven.gov.uk


1. BACKGROUND TO REPORT

The Council is committed to the highest standards of quality, probity, openness 
and accountability. As part of the Committee’s terms of reference, counter fraud 
is one of the key areas of focus being an essential element of delivering good 
governance. In order to develop and promote greater awareness, and in line 
with best practice, a review of the Council’s counter fraud arrangements has 
been undertaken culminating in this Annual Report for 2016-17. This report sets 
out the key outcomes from counter fraud work delivered during the course of 
the year relating to both welfare/benefit fraud and non-welfare/benefit fraud. 

Like any organisation South Kesteven is inherently vulnerable to the risk of 
fraud and corruption. With reducing Government funding and the current 
economic position it is vital that robust arrangements for the prevention and 
detection of fraud are maintained and best use of information and knowledge is 
made in order to ensure effective fraud prevention procedures in place. 

1.1 Counter Fraud Strategy

The Council’s Strategy was reviewed and updated in March 2016 to incorporate 
the new CIPFA Code of Practice on Managing the Risk of Fraud and 
Corruption.

1.2 Whistleblowing Investigations

During 2016-17 there were 15 whistleblowing concerns reported all of which 
have been investigated and action taken where appropriate. This is reported 
back to the whistleblower where contact information is provided.

Type of allegation Number Outcome
Benefits/SPD 9 No further action required and/or referred to 

DWP
Sub letting 2 Unfounded allegation 
Neighbour disputes 1 Unfounded allegation
Blue badge 1 Referred to LCC and action taken
Driver smoking 1 Action taken
Procurement 1 Unfounded allegation

1.3 Lincolnshire Counter Fraud Partnership (LCFP)

The LCFP continues to co-ordinate the response of the Lincolnshire local 
authorities in tackling high-risk areas of fraud against the councils. The group 
has now been extended to include representatives from the Police and Crime 
Commissioner (PCC) for Lincolnshire and Lincolnshire Police. All partners have 
contributed to LCFP's funding in 2017/18.

The Partnership is making good progress in key areas:

 delivering savings targets through pro-active counter fraud projects
 raising fraud awareness with members, staff and the public
 delivering joint fraud proactive exercises across Lincolnshire

Pg 82



 strengthening governance arrangements
 developing fraud networks (internal and external) to disseminate fraud 

intelligence and share best practice

The Council continues to actively contribute to the work of the partnership. The 
Partnership’s areas of progress include:

 development of e-learning and sharing with district partners to enable them 
to train their employees

 successful delivery of the Council Tax Reduction (CTR) exercise1 which 
identified revenue of around £500k2 from CTR fraud and error. The 
approach will be rolled out across the other districts in 2018/19 – the 
estimated net revenue gain is £724k

 delivery of housing tenancy fraud briefing to encourage districts with housing 
stock to participate in a housing tenancy fraud data check 

 working collaboratively with Procurement Lincolnshire to embed counter 
fraud messages in planned procurement training scheduled being rolled out 

 LCFP part funded a resource to deliver a pilot scheme to expand the 
National Non Domestic Rate base. The project identified potential missing 
and undervalued properties. Savings are estimated at £151k and the NNDR 
base was increased by £409k

1.5 Training and Awareness

The Council’s counter fraud and corruption arrangements are robust with a 
clear strategy and a fraud response plan in place. Underpinning any 
preventative approach should be a strong anti-fraud culture that is driven and 
implemented from the top down. It requires continuous active promotion and 
needs to include Councillors, staff, members of the public and suppliers. An 
anti-fraud culture should seek to motivate staff and ensure that they understand 
the importance of tackling fraud, are able to recognise fraud and abuse and 
know how and where to report suspicions of fraud.

The most effective anti-fraud culture changes people’s attitudes and behaviours 
towards fraud, positively reinforcing their responsibility in preventing, detecting 
and reporting fraud and deterring would-be criminals from committing fraud in 
the first place.  A fraud awareness campaign, along with elearning, will be rolled 
out in December.

1.6 Action Plan

The following actions are currently being undertaken:

1 CTR pilot involved Boston Borough Council in collaboration with a third party
2 CTR overpayments £181k, housing benefit overpayments £224k and subsidy/funding implications £93k  

Pg 83



 Continue to work with internal audit to review and improve the system and 
controls for the procurement of goods and services, including the 
management of contracts and official orders. An advisory review of the 
Contract Database is planned to be undertaken

 Continue to raise awareness amongst staff, stakeholders and partners about 
the risk of fraud in all areas of the Council’s business. Counter fraud 
elearning is planned for December 2017 – this is a coordinated approach 
across the whole county via the Lincolnshire Counter Fraud Partnership

 Continue to contribute to the work of the Lincolnshire Counter Fraud 
Partnership and support in the delivery of their action plan

 Development of a fraud risk register to identify fraud risks
 Continue to keep abreast of national developments in counter fraud work so 

that the Council can continue to respond positively to new ideas, initiatives 
and examples of best practice

 Development of a work plan for the new Counter Fraud Officer which will 
include the above actions

1.7 Conclusion

In summary, the Council has a number of national and local processes in place 
which help to identify and tackle fraud. This is underpinned by a robust Counter 
Fraud Strategy which is regularly reviewed and updated to ensure it is in line 
with current legislation and best practice. In addition, examining the risk of fraud 
is integral to the Council’s overarching approach to governance and risk 
management. The delivery of the above action plan will help to further embed 
and strengthen the current arrangements in place.  

2. OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED

None.

3. RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS 

This report has no direct impact on the Council’s resources, including finance/ 
budget, people, land/property etc.

4. RISK AND MITIGATION 

None.

5. ISSUES ARISING FROM IMPACT ANALYSIS (EQUALITY, SAFEGUARDING 
etc.)

None.

6. CRIME AND DISORDER IMPLICATIONS

None.

7. COMMENTS OF FINANCIAL SERVICES

These are contained within the report where appropriate.

Pg 84



8. COMMENTS OF LEGAL AND DEMOCRATIC SERVICES

Members of the Committee are responsible for monitoring actions taken and to 
be taken on behalf of the Council to identify corporate risks and assess whether 
they are being effectively managed.  It is essential they are kept up to date with 
details of the risks and how they have been mitigated.

9. COMMENTS OF OTHER RELEVANT SERVICES 

None.

10. APPENDICES

None.

11. BACKGROUND PAPERS

None.

Pg 85



Governance and Audit Committee

Report of: Councillor Adam Stokes
Cabinet Member for Finance

Report to:

Date:

Subject:

GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE

14th December 2017

CFM448  Treasury Management Activity 2017/18 – Mid Year 
Review

Decision
Proposal: Constitutional requirement 

Relevant 
Cabinet 
Member:

Councillor Adam Stoles – Cabinet Member for Finance

Report author:

Reviewed by:

Signed off by:

Approved for 
publication

Nicky Lovely – Interim Accountancy Team Leader
Date: 28th November 2017

Richard Wyles – Assistant Director, Finance
Date: 29th November 2017 

Debbie Mogg – Interim Director - Resources
Date: 30th November 2017 

Councillor Adam Stokes, Finance Cabinet member
Date 30th November 2017 

SUMMARY
This Council is required by regulations issued under the Local Government Act 2003 to 
produce regular reports on treasury and debt management operations during the 
financial year.
This report meets the requirements of the CIPFA Code of Practice on Treasury 
Management (the Code).

RECOMMENDATION
It is recommended that Members of Governance and Audit Committee:

 Note and approve the contents of the mid-year review of Treasury Management 
activity for 2017/18.  

 Approve the amendments to the Treasury Management Strategy 2017/18 
detailed within the report.

Pg 86

Agenda Item 11



1. BACKGROUND TO REPORT;

1.1 Introduction

Treasury Management is the term used to cover the Council's borrowing and 
investment strategies.  The Council has formally adopted the key 
recommendations of the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy 
(CIPFA) Code of Practice for Treasury Management in the Public Services.  In 
line with the Code the Council has adopted a treasury management policy 
statement that requires regular reports on treasury and debt management 
operations during the financial year.

Additionally, under Part 1 of the Local Government Act 2003, the Council is 
required to have regard to the Prudential Code for Capital Finance including the 
setting of Prudential Indicators.  Relevant treasury management indicators were 
incorporated into the Treasury Management Strategy 2017/18 approved by 
Council on 2nd March 2017.
This report is submitted in accordance with these requirements and provides a 
review of treasury management for the period ended 30th September 2017 and 
reviews current developments.  This review is also promoted by the CIPFA 
Treasury Management Panel.

 
1.2 Details 

This report sets out the following for the 6 month period from 1 April to 30th 
September 2017:

a. A review of debt management operations;

b. A review of investment operations; 

c. An update on the treasury management Prudential Code Indicators;

d. An economic update for the first part of the 2017/18 financial year.

DEBT MANAGEMENT OPERATIONS

Long Term Borrowing

No additional long term borrowing was required during the first half of 2017/18.  
All Council borrowing is with the Public Works Loans Board (PWLB) and the 
average rate of interest paid on the debt portfolio was 2.82%.  Appendix A 
shows loans outstanding as at 30th September 2017.  Regular reviews are 
undertaken to consider redemption costs of natural maturity against new 
borrowing to settle the outstanding debt early.  As part of borrowing 
requirements around the HRA self financing proposals the Council has created 
two separate debt portfolios which apportion the existing debt between the 
General Fund and HRA.  

Pg 87



Short-Term/Temporary Borrowing

This can be defined as borrowing which is due to be repaid within 365 days.  At 
30th September 2017, the council had short term borrowing of £3.722m with the 
next loan due to mature in November 2017 to the value of £0.500m. The 
remaining £3.022m being the principle to be repaid at various points in the 
future.  The average annual rate of interest on the remaining loans is 3.03%.  

INVESTMENT OPERATIONS

The average size of the investment portfolio for the 6 month period was £69.9m 
compared to an average portfolio size of £62.2million during the same period in 
2016/17.  These cash balances include balance sheet reserves and provisions, 
unapplied capital receipts and grants, plus cash arising due to the timing of 
large receipts and payments.

Investment Activity in the period ended 30th September 2017

The Council operates a diverse portfolio and uses a number of methods to 
invest its reserves which include direct deposit, certificate of deposits, notice 
accounts and money market funds.  As at 30th September 2017, the Council 
held short term investments of £51.418m (specified investments), and £20m 
long term investment (non-specified investments).  The Treasury Management 
Strategy stipulates that the Council should not ordinarily hold more than 35% of 
investments as non specified investments and this was adhered to during the 
first half of 2017/18.  A schedule of investments at 30th September 2017 can be 
found at Appendix B.

Short Term Fixed Deposits – In the period ended 30th September 2017 £14 m 
of short term fixed deposits and £2m of building society deposits were placed; 
£12m of investments matured within the period. 

Long Term Fixed Deposits – In the period ended 30th September 2017 £3m of 
long term fixed rate building society deposits were placed; with £5m maturing 
within the period.   

Service Investments: Local Authority Mortgage Scheme - In July 2012 a fixed 
rate deposit of £1 million was placed with Lloyds Bank on a 5 year term at 
3.79% with a maturity date of 3rd July 2017. In July 2013 a further £1m was 
placed with Lloyds Bank on a 5 year term at 2.86% with a maturity date of 20th 
February 2019. All schemes with Lloyds Bank have been closed as from the 
31st July 2016.  The first investment has been returned and the second amount 
of principal will be returned to South Kesteven District Council in full on the 
maturity date stated. 

TREASURY MANAGEMENT PRUDENTIAL CODE INDICATORS

Prudential Code indicators specific to treasury management are designed to 
ensure that treasury management is carried out in accordance with professional 
practice.  Indicators for 2017/18, 2018/19 and 2019/20 were approved by 
Council in March 2017 as part of the Treasury Management Strategy 2017/18.

Pg 88



The 2017/18 indicators and actual figures for the 6 months to 30th September 
2017 are set out at Appendix C.  All investment activity has been maintained 
within the indicator limits.

Economic Background

In the first half of 2017, growth has been disappointingly weak.  Figures showed 
quarter 1 coming in at +0.3% (+1.7% y/y) and quarter 2 was +0.3% (+1.5% y/y).  
This puts growth for the first half of 2017 at the slowest rate since 2012.  The 
services sector of the economy which accounts for around 75% of GDP has 
seen reduced consumer spending.  This can be attributed to a sharp increase in 
inflation, following the devaluation of the pound after the EU referendum, and 
subsequent lowering of the bank rate to 0.25%.  

Inflation reached a 5 year high in September with the monthly CPI figures 
reaching 3%, and outstripped the current low wage inflation in the UK.  This 
therefore caused a reduction in consumer disposable income.  There were 
more encouraging statistics for the manufacturing sector however, which has 
experienced higher demand for exports.

The Monetary Policy Committee (MPC) in September, surprised markets and 
forecasters with a warning that the bank rate will need to rise.  This lead to a 
rise in the value of sterling and yields registering their largest weekly increase in 
4 years, at 6-10 basis points across the board.  However as the Bank of England 
Inflation Reports during 2017 clearly flagged up their expectation that CPI inflation 
would peak at just under 3% in 2017, the revision of this data to over 3% at the 
September MPC meeting therefore seems to be a marginal adjustment.  
Instead the rationale behind a rate hike was focused on unemployment levels at 
4.3% their lowest rates since 1975, low levels of improvements in productivity, 
and a more tolerant view of low wage inflation, reflecting a diminishing amount 
of spare capacity within the economy.
On 2nd November the MPC reversed it’s decision to lower bank rate to 0.25%, and 
reverted back to 0.50%.  It is unclear if this would be intended to be a one off 
increase or the start of a series of increases.  As at the start of October the financial 
markets were indicating that they do not expect a see a second increase in bank 
rate until May 2018, with a third increase in November 2019, although with so much 
uncertainty around Brexit negotiations, it is far too early to be confident about how 
the economy will fair over this period.

1.3 Amendments to the Treasury Management Strategy 2017/18

The limits within the Treasury Management Strategy are set with regard to 
future spending plans, including the Council’s capital programme.  With an 
innovative capital programme in prospect, it is necessary to ensure flexibility in 
investments to allow cash flow management over both the short and longer 
terms. It is therefore proposed that the following changes are made to the 
Treasury Management Strategy to give the council this flexibility.  

 As interest rates offered on short term investments have improved since the 
Bank of England changed the base rate, the proposal is to increase the limit 
on specified investments from 30% to 45% - this indicator includes fixed 
term, instant access, and accounts with notice periods up to one year.

Pg 89



 The strategy currently limits the amount to be invested with the top ten 
building societies (by asset size) to a total of £10m.  As building societies 
are currently offering a good rate of interest, it would be advantageous to 
the Council to increase this limit to £20m for short term investments, 
retaining the current maximum of £2m with any one institution.

 The set limit for maximum principle sums invested for longer than one year 
duration conflicts with the percentage limit set out in the strategy, as the 
Council’s overall investments have increased. It is therefore proposed to 
increase this limit from £15m in 2017/18 to £25m, with comparable 
increases for future years, if investment levels remain constant. The 
maximum percentage for longer term investments will remain at 35%, as a 
higher level than this could mean that funding is not available when 
required.

 The maximum limit per institution does not make clear whether it includes 
all investments (both specified and non-specified) or whether there are 
separate limits for the two categories.  It is therefore proposed that the 
maximum limit per institution is clarified as £12m for ALL investments, with 
a higher limit of £15m at the discretion of the section 151 officer (or deputy) 
where an institution is considered to be of a higher credit quality.

It is also necessary to clarify in the strategy, that on occasion, Capita Asset 
Services are used as a fund manager, as well as them being the Council’s 
treasury advisers.

2. OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED

2.1 The Committee could consider an alternative option of retaining the strategy in 
its current format and not include the amendments as presented.  However, this 
will affect interest income achieved, and could lead to other changes to the 
strategy becoming necessary – e.g. Limit on amounts invested in money 
market funds.

3. RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS 

3.1 These are stated in the report.

4. RISK AND MITIGATION 

4.1 Risk has been considered as part of this report and any specific high risks are 
included in the table below:

Category Risk Action / Controls
Financial Risk The treasury strategy has been compiled in 

conjunction with the Council’s treasury advisors and 
is monitored by the Committee on a regular basis

5. ISSUES ARISING FROM IMPACT ANALYSIS (EQUALITY, SAFEGUARDING 
etc.)

Pg 90



5.1 None.

6. CRIME AND DISORDER IMPLICATIONS

6.1 None.

7. COMMENTS OF FINANCIAL SERVICES

7.1 These are included in the report.

8. COMMENTS OF LEGAL AND DEMOCRATIC SERVICES

8.1 This report provides details of the Councils performance in respect of Treasury 
Management against policy set out as part of the Budget and Policy 
Framework.  Members should note the performance, and scrutinise any 
elements to assist the role of the Governance and Audit Committee in its review 
of the Treasury Management Strategy.

9. COMMENTS OF OTHER RELEVANT SERVICES 

9.1 None.

10. APPENDICES

A – Debt Maturity Analysis
B – Investment Maturity Analysis
C – Treasury Management Prudential Indicators

11. BACKGROUND PAPERS

CFM409 – Treasury Management Strategy 2017/18
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=261&MId=3320&V
er=4

Pg 91

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=261&MId=3320&Ver=4
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=261&MId=3320&Ver=4


APPENDIX A

Debt Maturity Analysis - Public Works Loan Board

 At 30 Sept 2017
  £ 
  

Less than one year 3,721,733.33
  
Between one and two years 3,221,733.33
  
Between two and five years 34,665,199.99

Between five and ten years 16,108,666.65

Between ten and fifteen years  16,108,666.65
  
Over fifteen years 30,606,466.64

 
Total 104,432,466.59

2.81% (average Rate of outstanding debt) 

Pg 92



APPENDIX B                

Investment Maturity Analysis

Schedule of Managed Cash Funds
 As at 30 Sept 

2017
Average interest 

rate
 £ %

Short term investment   
Goldman Sachs 6 & 9 Month 8,000,000 0.80
Barclays 95 Day Notice 1,000,000 0.44
Barclays FIBCA Call Account   1,000,000 0.05
Federated Prime Rate MMF 5,000,000 variable
Insight £ LQF Nil variable
SLI Liquidity Funds 2,418,000 variable
BNP Paribas MMF 5,000,000 variable
Short term Fixed Investment 26,000,000 0.70
Building Societies 2,000,000 0.82
Close Brothers Ltd 3,000,000 0.85

   
Long term investment   
Building Societies 8,000,000 0.91
Close Brothers Limited 4,000,000 1.07
Lloyds Banking Group 5,000,000 0.90
Goldman Sachs 1,000,000 1.17

Total 
         

71,418,000 
                           

0.69 
   

Service Investment   
Lloyds TSB - LAMS 1,000,000 2.86

Pg 93



APPENDIX C

TREASURY MANAGEMENT PRUDENTIAL CODE INDICATORS

Treasury Management Prudential Indicators and Limits on Activity for South Kesteven 
District Council.

Treasury Management Indicators – Comparison for 2017/18 to actual position for the 6 
months to 30 September 2017.

Maturity Structure of borrowing – upper and lower limits

Amount of projected borrowing that is fixed rate maturing in each period as a 
percentage of total projected borrowing that is fixed rate

Actual LimitUpper Limit
% %

Under 12 months 40 3.56

12 months and within 24 months 40 3.09

24 months and within 5 years 100 33.19

5 years and within 10 years 100 15.43

10 years and above 100 44.73

Maturity structure of borrowing – these gross limits are set to reduce the Council’s 
exposure to large fixed rate sums falling due for refinancing, and are required for 
upper and lower limits.  

Total principal finds invested for greater than 364 days.  These limits are set to reduce 
the need for early sale of an investment, and are based on the availability of 
investments after each year-end.

External debt indicators

Authorised limit for external debt
2017-18 Actual To date 
£’000 £’000

Borrowing 126,765 106,543
Other long term liabilities 0 0
Total 126,765 106,543

The authorised limit – this represents the limit beyond which borrowing is prohibited, 
and needs to be set and revised by members.  It reflects the level of borrowing which, 
while not desired, could be afforded in the short term, but is not sustainable.  It is the 
expected maximum borrowing need with some headroom for unexpected movements.  
This is the statutory limit determined under section 3 (1) of the Local Government Act 
2003.

Pg 94



Operational boundary for external debt

2017--18 Actual To date 
£’000 £’000

Borrowing 109,765 106,543
Other long term liabilities 0 0
Total 109,765 106,543

The operational boundary – this indicator is based on the probable external debt 
during the course of the year; it is not a limit and actual borrowing could vary around 
this boundary for short times during the year.  It should act as an indicator to ensure 
the authorised limit is not breached.

.

Pg 95


	Agenda
	4 Minutes of the meeting held on 20 September 2017
	6 Annual Audit Letter
	Annual Audit Letter 2016/17��South Kesteven District Council
	Slide Number 2
	Summary 
	Summary of reports issued
	Audit fees
	Slide Number 6

	7 Internal Audit Progress Report
	RESTRICTED_Cyber Security 5.17_18 FINAL SKDC

	8 Internal Audit Follow Up Report
	9 Corporate Risk Register Update
	CFM445 Appendix A DRAFT Corporate Risk Register Dec 2017

	10 Counter Fraud Annual Report 2016/17
	11 Treasury Mid-Year Review



